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REGULAR MEETING

THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF TRUTH OR
CONSEQUENCES, NEW MEXICO, TO BE HELD IN THE COMMISSION CHAMBERS, 405 W. 3RD
ST.,ON WEDNESDAY, MARCH 22, 2023; TO START AT 9:00 A.M.

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. INTRODUCTION
1. ROLL CALL
Hon. Amanda Forrister, Mayor
Hon. Rolf Hechler, Mayor Pro-Tem
Hon. Destiny Mitchell, Commissioner
Hon. Merry Jo Fahl, Commissioner
Hon. Shelly Harrelson, Commissioner

2. SILENT MEDITATION
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

C. PUBLIC COMMENT (3 Minute Rule Applies)

D. REPORTS
1. City Manager
2. City Attorney
3. City Commission

E. CONSENT CALENDAR
1. City Commission Regular Minutes, March 8, 2023
2. Acknowledge Regular Planning & Zoning Minutes, January 9, 2023
3. Acknowledge Regular Planning & Zoning Minutes, February 13, 2023
4. Take Home Vehicle Forms



F. PUBLIC HEARINGS (5 Minute Rule Applies)

1.

Public Hearing/Discussion/Action: Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 747 an
ordinance authorizing the lease of real property, pursuant to section 3-54-1
NMSA 1978 to Sun State Tower.

G. ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS/ZONING

1.

2.

Discussion/Action: Resolution No. 35 22/23 Budget Adjustment Request. Kristie
Wilson, Finance Director

Discussion/Action: Amendment to Park User Fees, Resolution 68 21/22, adding
the use of the concession stand located at the Louis Armijo Sports Complex. O]
Hechler, Community Services Director

H. NEW BUSINESS

1.

2.

Discussion/Action: Approval of the Turtleback Trails Master Plan. Attila Bality,
Jornada RC&D

Discussion/Action: Approval of Volunteer Fire PERA. Paul Tooley Fire Chief and
City Manager Swingle

Discussion/Action: Approval of Purchase Requisitions over $20,000. Kristie
Wilson, Finance Director

Discussion/Action: Approval of Lease between the City of T or C and the Sierra
County Flood Commission for office space located at 400 W. 4th Avenue. City
Manager Swingle

Discussion/Action: Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the City of
Elephant Butte and the City of Truth or Consequences regarding Provision of
Animal Shelter Services. City Manager Swingle

Discussion/Action: Approve and execute the NM DFA Local Government
Division, CDBG Program Agreement for Project No. 22-C-NR-I-01-G-01. Assistant
City Manager Alvarez

Discussion/Action: Request from Planning & Zoning Commission to create a
Rules of Procedure Manual for their board. City Attorney Rubin and City Clerk
Torres

Approval of the Truth or Consequences Housing Authority Board’s
recommendation to re-appoint Dr. Greg D’Amour to serve another term on the
board. City Clerk Torres

[. EXECUTIVE SESSION

1.
2.

Threatened & Pending Litigation (Erica Baker) pursuant to 10-15-1(H.7).
Purchase, Acquisition, or Disposal of Real Property (potential sale of the city’s
electric infrastructure to Sierra Electric Coop) pursuant to 10-15-1(H.8).

J. RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION; ACTION (if any)

1.

Purchase, Acquisition, or Disposal of Real Property (potential sale of the city’s
electric infrastructure to Sierra Electric Coop) pursuant to 10-15-1(H.8).

K. ADJOURNMENT



The meeting will be broadcast live through KCHS on 101.9 FM.

If you are an individual with a disability who is in need of a reader, amplifier, qualified sign
language interpreter, or any other form of auxiliary aid or service to attend or participate in the
hearing or meeting please contact the City Clerk’s Office, at 505 Sims Street, Truth or
Consequences, New Mexico 87901, phone (575) 894-6673 at least one (1) week prior to the meeting
or as soon as possible. Public documents, including the agenda and minutes, can be provided in
various accessible formats. Please contact the City Clerk’s Olffice if a summary or other type of
accessible format is needed.

NEXT REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING APRIL 12,2023



CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES
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Agenda Item #: E. 1

MEETING DATE: March 22, 2023

SUBIJECT: City Commission Regular Minutes, March 8, 2023
DEPARTMENT: City Clerk’s Office

DATE SUBMITTED: March 17, 2023

SUBMITTED BY: Angela A. Torres, Clerk-Treasurer

WHO WILL PRESENT THE ITEM: Consent Calendar

Summary/Background:

Minutes approval.

Recommendation:

Approve the minutes.

Attachments:

e CC Minutes

Fiscal Impact (Finance): N/A

$0.00

Legal Review (City Attorney): N/A

None.

Approved For Submittal By: [ Department Director
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CITY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES
CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES, NEW MEXICO
CITY COMMISSION CHAMBERS, 405 W. 3RP gt,
WEDNESDAY, MARCH 8, 2023

A. CALL TO ORDER:

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Amanda Forrister at 9:00 a.m., who presided
and Angela A. Torres, City Clerk-Treasurer, acted as Secretary of the meeting.

B. INTRODUCTION:
1. ROLL CALL:

Upon calling the roll, the following Commissioners were reported present.

Hon. Amanda Forrister, Mayor

Hon. Rolf Hechler, Mayor Pro-Tem

Hon. Destiny Mitchell, Commissioner

Hon. Merry Jo Fahl, Commissioner was absent
Hon. Shelly Harrelson, Commissioner

Also Present: Bruce Swingle, City Manager
Traci Alvarez, Assistant City Manager
Angela A. Torres, City Clerk-Treasurer
Kristie Wilson, Finance Director
Jay Rubin, City Attorney via telephone
OJ Hechler, Community Services Director
Electric Department Director Easley
Luis Tavizon, Chief of Police

There being a quorum present, the Commission proceeded with the business at hand.
2. SILENT MEDITATION:

Mayor Forrister called for fifteen seconds of silent meditation.
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

Mayor Forrister called for Commissioner Hechler to lead the Pledge of Allegiance.



CITY COMMISSION MARCH 8, 2023 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

Mayor Pro-Tem Hechler moved to approve the agenda with the removal of item
G1. Commissioner Mitchell seconded the motion. Roll call was taken by the
Clerk-Treasurer. Motion carried unanimously.

C. PRESENTATIONS:
1. Presentation of City of Truth or Consequences Employee Service
Anniversary Awards:

City Manager Swingle presented an Employee Service Anniversary Award to Crispin
Bush for 3 years of service with the City of Truth or Consequences.

City Manager Swingle and Andy Alvarez, Sanitation Director, presented an Employee
Service Anniversary Award to Joseph Daley for 5 years of service with the City of Truth
or Consequences

City Manager Swingle and Community Development Director Hechler, presented an
Employee Service Anniversary Award to Ashley Galicia for 1 year of service with the
City of Truth or Consequences.

City Manager Swingle presented an Employee Service Anniversary Award to Shane
Jeffers for 1 year of service with the City of Truth or Consequences.

City Manager Swingle and Rick Artman, Golf Course Manager presented an Employee
Service Anniversary Award to George Rea for 2 years of service with the City of Truth
or Consequences.

City Manager Swingle and Sonya Williams, Utility Office Manager presented an
Employee Service Anniversary Award to Chelsea LeClair for 7 years of service with the
City of Truth or Consequences.

City Manager Swingle and Pat O’Hanlon, Library Manager presented an Employee
Service Anniversary Award to Kathleen Martinez for 1 year of service with the City of
Truth or Consequences.

City Manager Swingle presented an Employee Service Anniversary Award to Bo Easley
for 22 years of service with the City of Truth or Consequences.

City Manager Swingle and Rick Artman, Golf Course Manager presented an Employee

Service Anniversary Award to Martin Towner for 3 years of service with the City of Truth
or Consequences.
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CITY COMMISSION MARCH 8, 2023 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

D. PUBLIC COMMENT (3 Minute Rule Applies):

Christie Sallee addressed the Commission with comments related to:
(1) She is the applicant for item 13. She bought a trailer and she was unaware that

she had to move it from the location that it is in because it is in a senior citizen
RV Park. The property owner is asking that it be moved because she is not a
senior and she has a child. She has a property owner who is willing to let her
move it to their property. However, she had to apply for a variance request
because the trailer is older 20 years old, so she asked that the Commission
please approve her variance request.

E. REPORTS:

City Manager Swingle reported the following:

He wanted to first recognize the staff. Everybody is working extremely hard, and
a lot of good work is being done in the community, and in most departments, they
are short of staff so everyone is carrying a little more of the load and they need to
be recognized for that. There is fantastic work that is occurring city wide.

Fiscal year to date, the city received a little over $513,000 more in GRT revenue
than we did prior years so that equates to about a 16.4% increase in GRT
revenue. It is very important to know that does not include the GRT that we are
going to start receiving on the roundabout project, as well as increase in GRT we
are going to experience from the bridge construction that is taking place. Next
month we will be able to start reporting the first month of GRT revenues from
those projects, but thus far the revenue that has been collected is all pre-
construction projects.

A couple of months ago you made a change to the lodger’s tax ordinance which
you allowed third parties to pay lodger’s tax for individual property owners. With
the first month’s revenues we saw a little over $5,000 increase in lodger’s tax
revenues so it is a plus, and | think that it will be continued, and even grow as
more businesses take advantage of this with Airbnb.

Cannabis revenues still remain about $5,700 on average per month, so we are
looking at roughly $65,000 per year in revenue from cannabis. However, it is still
not going to cover the social consequences that we are going to experience in
the community over time.

We received the small city assistance appropriation from the state. We just got
that this week. It was for a little over $336,000. It was a little over what we
generally receive. We usually receive somewhere around $20,000 so it is a little
more revenue than expected.

Human Resources attended and participated in the high school job fair. They
handed out a number of applications, and she already received some back from
some of the students, so that's fantastic. We would love to get them employed,
not only through summer, but full time as well.
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We still have vacancies on various city boards. We have one vacancy on the
Library Board. We have two vacancies on the Impact Fee Advisory Board, one
vacancy on the Planning & Zoning Commission, and we have one vacancy on
the Recreation Advisory Board.

We have been to Santa Fe, and we have been working with our legislative
delegation, and the environment department, as well as the governor’s office in
regards to trying to secure funding for the water infrastructure. We need about
$20 million dollars to address the emergency situation of the water leaks, and the
large volume of water that we are losing. That is working its way through the
system, and Senator Crystal Diamond is really working her tail off for this
community, and specifically for this project. He would like to recognize Jay Armijo
and the SCCOG as well. They have been with us every step of the way in trying
to get recognition and inform people of the situation and the urgency of the
funding that we need. He was contacted by an NBC national reporter on the
situation, and it all originated from the story that was written by the spotlight. The
reporter is flying in today with a cameraman. They had lengthy interviews
telephonically. However, the reporter wants to do an in person interview and get
some footage of some of the water leaks. As of today we still have 11 water
leaks flowing in the city, which is simply less than what we have when it gets
warmer in the summer when consumption goes up. | think he is very genuine,
and wants to help. He is a good journalist, and we think he will be able to
promote the situation that we have right now. We met with Senator Heinrich'’s
staff. We met with his local liaison, as well as two of his staff members from
Washington, and we talked about the congressional direct spending. We talked
about the $1.6 million that we received for this year, and we worked out a plan for
next year. We already submitted the application for next year, and we submitted
it based on what they think they can do, and work with through the Senator
Appropriations Committee. It is all fantastic news, and he thinks that everybody is
wanting to help us. The window is very narrow with the legislator because this is
their last week in sessions so we are trying to really expedite the process as fast
as we can with the state.

We moved the library branch out of the Lee Belle Johnson Center. They are now
out at the Nadine Gardner Center. We stopped Spaceport from occupying their
space, and we have to find a new location for the Visitor Center. The criteria that
they want for the Geronimo Trails Visitor Center is that they want it downtown,
they have to have some vehicular access to the public, so we are looking at one
facility right now and they are pretty excited with it. The facility will not be able to
accommodate the Spaceport Visitor Center in the full capacity or extent that it is
now. The ceilings are normal office sized ceilings so some of the exhibits will not
be transferable to the new building, but they will be able to occupy it, and have
some displays available to them. We are trying to iron out the details, and we are
currently trying to find grant opportunities for funding for the mitigation efforts for
the Lee Belle Johnson building. There is so much gossip about the facility, and
people want another engineer to come in, and they want a second opinion, but
we paid a lot of money for the study that we had done. The analysis was spot on,
when you look at the damage that occurring in the facility, and the deterioration
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are structural integrity issues, yeah we can leave people in there until the cows
come home, but at any time we can have failures of that building, and we are not
going to be responsible for that. We are not going to occupy it any longer than we
have to. The structural integrity of that building has been compromised, and it
may fall sooner than later, we will never know that, and hopefully we won't find
that out, but we will move the people out of the building for their safety.

We have a school board meeting on Monday, and he encourages the community
to attend, and really see what is going on in the schools. They need community
and parent involvement in the school district.

City Attorney Rubin reported the following:

He thanked the Commission and the city for allowing him to appear
telephonically. He thought that he would be attending in person today, but his
doctor told him that he has to wait until March 15t to have his sling removed. He
expects to attend the next meeting in person.

City Commission Reports:

Commissioner Mitchell reported the following:

We had a very busy weekend. They had a lot of events going on in the
community. She gave a shout out to Ashley and Human Resources for being
there for the city for career day at the high school. It was a big success. She
thinks that the kids really benefited from it. The gym was packed, and there were
a ton of people from all over the place.

This weekend we had an FFA event, and we had the Fiesta Taste of Sierra
County fundraiser/brunch at the T or C Brewery on Saturday, and it was a really
big hit too. We had the high school Principal Leslie Clark. They had singer/song
writer Burt Ferguson, and they had Lt. Venable representing the city, and they
got a really good picture of him with a pie in his face. It was a great event. It was
really supported by the community and the patrons. We raised money for Fiesta,
and overall it was a good turnout. Following that she wrapped about 100 spring
rolls for the “People Growing Together” fundraiser dinner on Saturday afternoon
which was also a really big success. Kudos the community members, businesses
and participants for all of the events. It was a pretty crazy weekend. There were
so many things going on Saturday.

Commissioner Harrelson reported the foliowing:

We had the Hot Springs Judging here in T or C on Saturday. We are centrally
located in the state. We had schools from various places throughout the state
who attended. Some of them had to stay in hotels because some of them drove 6
hours to get here, the contest included different types of competitions. There
were a little over 1070 entries for teams so that just tells you how many different
contest entries there were. We had a lot of different areas in the Ag department.
We often forget that our first environmentalists in the state have been our
ranchers and our farmers and they have to really know what is going on in the
land, and how to handle it. These were qualifier events, and the kids who were
qualifying at the top could qualify for the state level, and then move onto a
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national level. There were lots, and lots of people here. We fed at least 350 kids,
and there were lots of adults who attended. She gave kudos to Julian Marta for
putting this together, and making such a great event for our kids. Our kids didn’t
even get to compete because they were doing so much to help support the
contest. This is a really great event for our high school, and to bring some money
into our community. It also put us on the map for a really great place for contests.

Mayor Pro-Tem Hechler reported the following:

He gave a shout out to our local restaurants. He asked that the community
patronize these local restaurants because local folks are the ones who sponsor
our kids in school, and they help us with events like this. Their money stays here,
and they support the community. All businesses are important, but when you go
to a corporate place, a lot of the time the local managers aren’t able to make a
decision or if they do it takes a long time to get things done, and the money may
or may not stay here.

He really appreciates City Manager Swingle bringing city staff before them so
that the Commission can meet them and know a little bit about them, and
understand the quality of the personnel that we have

Fiesta Casino Night will be on April 15t at the Civic Center. It is their next
fundraiser for Fiesta. Being a part of Fiesta has been a lot of fun and he
appreciates everyone who works for Fiesta.

Mayor Forrister reported the following:

It is very refreshing to hear about all of the things that go on in our community.
She was at the judging this weekend as well, and it was refreshing because
those kids are some of the most respectful kids that you will ever meet. It is really
nice to see them putting real life skills into play. It was really neat to see, and the
school parking lot was full of people from out of town. There was a baseball
game going on as well. She didn’t get to go to the Taste of the County event, but
she got to watch it live.

She thanked City Manager Swingle for the work that he did. He and his staff
really brought life to our water issues, and they tried to fight for us to get funding
for that. She thanked him and his staff for not kicking the can down the road
anymore, and addressing the 60 year old water infrastructure.

F. CONSENT CALENDAR:

City Commission Regular Minutes, February 22, 2023

City Commission Special Executive Minutes, February 24, 2023
Acknowledge Public Arts Board Minutes, January 10, 2023
Acknowledge Recreation Advisory Board Minutes, February 6, 2023
February 2023 Accounts Payable

AhONb=

Commissioner Mitchell moved to approve the Consent Calendar as submitted.
Commission Harrelson seconded the motion. Roll call was taken by the Clerk-
Treasurer. Motion carried unanimously.
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G. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
1. Public Hearing/Discussion/Action: Final Adoption of the City's
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2023 Ordinance No. 745:

Item was removed from the agenda until the April 12t meeting.

H. ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS/ZONING:

1. Discussion/Action: Resolution No. 32 22/23 Confirming the City of
Truth or Consequences to participate in the Department of
Transportation Municipal Arterial Program Local Government Road
Fund Program:

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: This application is for the reconstruction of Pershing
Street, from north Main Street to Second Street, and from Second Street to Pershing
Street to Date Street. This will cover some street repairs where our MSD Water project
is going in so we can pave over those streets once the new water lines are put in. We
are estimating this application cost to be right around $860,917. It is a 25% match, so
the city would be required for $215,129. We are waiting on clarification on whether or
not that can be an in kind match because our Streets Department does do a lot of the
work, and the match will be in kind on a lot of these NMDOT funds. A resolution is
required to start the application process. Once the application is completed, and
submitted, if we receive an award, that award would have to be accepted by the
Commission, and we will know exactly what our grant amount is.

Mayor Pro-Tem Hechler moved to approve Resolution No. 32 22/23 Confirming
the City of Truth or Consequences to participate in the Department of
Transportation Municipal Arterial Program Local Government Road Fund
Program. Commissioner Harrelson seconded the motion. Roll call was taken by
the Clerk-Treasurer. Motion carried unanimously.

2. Discussion/Action: Approval of Resolution No. 33 22/23 for the Sale
of Surplus Property (non-usable transformers):

Bo Easley, Electric Division Director: Over the past few years they have collected pole
mount transformers that have gone bad, had burned up or had been struck by lightning.
| have 87 transformers, | received 3 bids, one from Sunbelt Solomon, one from Emerald
Transformer, and one from UTB Transformers. Those companies will pick up the
transformers, take them and drain the oil out of them, and make sure that there are no
PCB's in them per EPA, and then they will refurbish or recycle them. | did this about 5 or
6 years ago, and now | have a lot of them again, and | would like to dispose of them.

City Attorney Rubin: You have seen this resolution many times before when we are
doing an auction of personal property, and in this situation we have a little bit of a
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situation because we have never brought a proposed offer to buy the personal property,
and | believe the bids are somewhere in the realm of $3,500. Section 3-54-2 still applies
to this type of sale because it is still a sale of property, and the first bullet point of the
resolution, which mirrors the state statute, says “The City of Truth or Consequences
may sell personal property having a value of more than two thousand five hundred
($2,500.00) at public or private sale. If a private sale is held under this subsection, such
sale shall be held only after notice is published at least twice, pursuant to the provisions
of Subsection J or Section 3-1-2 NMSA 1978, not less than seven days apart, with the
last publication not less than fourteen days prior to the sale”. So the procedure would be
that we would advertise the items to be sold to the public if the resolution is approved,
and we will leave the door open to see what offers we receive, and after it is published,
we will not have to bring it back to the Commission unless you want us to.

Bo Easley, Electric Division Director: My only concern is if the transformer oil has PCB
in it, the companies who put in bids will recycle the units and take care of it. | don't think
we want just anyone off the street to make a bid on it and then take it, and it have PCB,
and then it come back on us.

City Clerk Torres: All 3 of the companies who put in a bid will make sure that the
transformers are recycled or refurbished properly.

City Attorney Rubin: | don't think that we have to specify that in the publication. It would
just be something that administration would keep in mind when they evaluate the offers.

Mayor Pro-Tem Hechler moved to approve Resolution No. 33 22/23 for the Sale of
Surplus Property (non-usable transformers). Commission Mitchell seconded the
motion. Roll call was taken by the Clerk-Treasurer. Motion carried unanimously.

3. Discussion/Action: Approval of Resolution No. 34 22/23 for the Sale
of Surplus Property (Aluminum & Steel Poles):

Bo Easley, Electric Division Director: They did the north interchange a couple of years
ago, and they took off all of the old steel poles, and we have them at our yard. They are
now doing the south interchange and they are taking down all of the steel poles and
giving them back to us. They are also taking down the steel poles where they are doing
the roundabouts and they are giving them to us. | am going to keep a few of the
aluminum poles for backup, even though we still have some new ones, but | want to get
rid of the old aluminum and steel poles that were installed in the 1970’s. They are old
and outdated.

Mayor Pro-Tem Hechler: So the value of recycling these things doesn’t supersede
someone bidding on them, and acquiring them that way?

Bo Easley, Electric Division Director: That's what Bruce and | talked about. | figured if
we recycled them we would get more money. | touched base with Mike Reid and he
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said he would take them and recycle them, and give us back the money that they are
worth.

City Clerk Torres: We are doing the same process as the other items. We will advertise
and if we do not receive any offers we will take them to Mike Reid.

Commissioner Mitchell moved to approve Resolution No. 34 22/23 for the Sale of
Surplus Property (Aluminum & Steel Poles). Commission Harrelson seconded the
motion. Roll call was taken by the Clerk-Treasurer. Motion carried unanimously.

4. Discussion/Action: Publication of Ordinance No. 748 an ordinance
authorizing the lease of real property, pursuant to section 3-54-1
NMSA 1978 to American Tower:

City Manager Swingle: At the last meeting you approved publication of the baseball field
tower lease, and that will be on the agenda for the next meeting. This is the second of
the 5 towers that we are going to propose to the Commission. American Tower is going
to pay us $300,000 for this. We had the property appraised, and we found a real issue
with appraisals, and we are going to work that out with the other appraisals that have to
be done on the remaining 3 towers. The appraisals are appraising the property and
assets on the land and basically the equipment on the given property. We are leasing
just the easement for the site so we need to get that clarified better with our appraiser.
The appraisal came in at $15,000 per year, and again that is for the land and the
equipment that is there so we have to get that cleared up, but bottom line, it is
$300,000. This will be a lump sum payment to the city. There's a lot more paperwork
that needs be done. You will see it again. This is just requesting authorization to
publish the ordinance and make it available for the community to see. A lot more work is
going to have to happen. The rental agreement is really when the decision is going to
be made.

Mayor Pro-Tem Hechler moved to approve publication of Ordinance No. 748 an
ordinance authorizing the lease of real property, pursuant to section 3-54-1 NMSA
1978 to American Tower. Commission Mitchell seconded the motion. Roll call
was taken by the Clerk-Treasurer. Motion carried unanimously.

. NEW BUSINESS:
1. Discussion/Action: Summary Plat Amendment 702 N. Foch Street:

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: The applicants wish to split the parcel at 702 N. Foch
located in the R-2 District. They want to split the parcel for the purpose of future
development. Parcel 1 is 90-foot-wide by 81 long. Parcel 2 is 59 wide by 90 long.
Standards for this district do require a minimum width of 60 foot. This amendment
doesn't have any significant effect to alter any of our utilities, drainage, or traffic. They'll
both have access to city maintained streets. A public hearing was held at the Planning &
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Zoning Meeting on February 13, 2023, and the board unanimously recommended
approval.

Commissioner Mitchell moved to approve the Summary Plat Amendment 702 N.
Foch Street. Commissioner Hechler seconded the motion. Roll call was taken by
the Clerk-Treasurer. Motion carried unanimously.

2. Discussion/Action: Summary Plat Amendment 1408/1410 Tin Street:

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: The applicants wish to merge the two parcels together
and build an attachment to an existing home, and stay within the required standards for
that district. A public hearing was held at the Planning & Zoning Meeting on February
13, 2023, and the board unanimously recommended approval.

Mayor Pro-Tem Hechler moved to approve the Summary Plat Amendment
1408/1410 Tin Street. Commissioner Harrelson seconded the motion. Roll call
was taken by the Clerk-Treasurer. Motion carried unanimously.

3. Discussion/Action: Variance Request 1401 Platinum Street:

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: The applicant is requesting a variance for a 1985
Mobile Home. Our Municipal Code requires that all Manufactured Homes Units that are
installed at any particular location within the city limits shall not be twenty (20) years or
older at the time of instillation. She is requesting a variance so she can move her mobile
home to an existing lot within the city. The mobile home seems to be in good condition.
A public hearing was held at the Planning & Zoning Meeting on February 13, 2023, and
the board unanimously recommended approval. The applicable minutes from the public
hearing are provided in the packet.

Mayor Pro-Tem Hechler: This is the reason why we have variance requests, because
we have some exceptions to these rules. I've seen manufactured homes that are 10 or
12 years old, and | wouldn’'t move them anywhere, and then there are trailers that have
been well kept, and are not an eye sore and have the ability to be moved, and | think
that this is one of those.

Commissioner Mitchell moved to approve the Variance Request 1401 Platinum

Street. Commissioner Harrelson seconded the motion. Roll call was taken by the
Clerk-Treasurer. Motion carried unanimously.
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4. Discussion/Action: Accept and Approve the State of New Mexico
Department of Finance and Administration Fund Regional Recreation
Centers Quality of Life Agreement:

OJ Hechler, Community Services Director: The city has applied for and received a
Regional Recreation Centers Quality of Life Grant Appropriation in the amount of
$449,019.00. The funds will be used for improvements to Ralph Edwards Park for the
purchase, installation and landscaping of new Playground and Exercise Equipment.
Part of this grant is also for the plan and design of a new skate park. In your packet you
will see what it will look like once the equipment is installed. | want to thank the City
Manager and the Assistant City Manager for support on this project.

Commissioner Mitchell moved to approve the State of New Mexico Department of
Finance and Administration Fund Regional Recreation Centers Quality of Life
Agreement. Commissioner Harrelson seconded the motion. Roll call was taken
by the Clerk-Treasurer. Motion carried unanimously.

5. Discussion/Action: Accept FY2023 Community Project
Funding/Congressionally Directed Spending Grant Award and
Execute Grant Agreement No. B-23-CP-NM-1048 and authorize staff to
complete and submit all required documentation: -27:58

City Manager Swingle: This is a request for funding that was submitted for the
Congressionally Directed Spending Community Project Funding for the improvement of
the city's water system hydraulics and to fix safety issues caused by infiltration and lack
of fire flow. This project would also eliminate high pressures issues, supplement
conservation of a large percentage of water, reduce service outages for residents,
improve the backup and redundancy to the water system, and improve the existing and
aging water systems. The water meters are currently older than 40 years, and
exceeding their life span and resulting in incorrect data regarding water usage and
impacting the City's billing system. Phase 1 Design and Planning is $1.6 million. Phase
2 Water meter replacement is $2 million. Phase 3 Waterline replacement & construction
is $4.3 million, and Phase 4 for a New Well is $500,000. This award is for Phase 1 for
the Design and Planning, and it is in the amount of $1.6 million.

Mayor Pro-Tem Hechler moved to approve the FY2023 Community Project
Funding/Congressionally Directed Spending Grant Award and Execute Grant
Agreement No. B-23-CP-NM-1048 and authorize staff to complete and submit all
required documentation. Commissioner Mitchell seconded the motion. Roll call
was taken by the Clerk-Treasurer. Motion carried unanimously.
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CITY COMMISSION MARCH 8, 2023 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

6. Discussion/Action: Approval of Parkhill Solid Waste Cost of Service
and Rate Design Study Engineering Services Proposal:

City Manager Swingle: The purpose of this is to review and evaluate the city’s Solid
Waste to include development of a five-year Revenue Requirement Forecast and ten-
year Capital Improvement Plan (to help in leveling annual capital expenditures), as well
as Cost of Service analysis to include residential collection, commercial collection,
Recycling Center(s), bulk collection, transfer/disposal; and Administration. The study
will assist in the Development of a rate and fee design plan.

Commissioner Mitchell moved to approve the Parkhill Solid Waste Cost of
Service and Rate Design Study Engineering Services Proposal. Commissioner
Harrelson seconded the motion. Roll call was taken by the Clerk-Treasurer.
Motion carried unanimously.

7. Discussion/Action: Approval of Purchase Requisitions over $20,000.
Kristie Wilson, Finance Director

Kristie Wilson, Finance Director reviewed the Purchase Requisitions over $20,000 that
was provided in the packet.

Commissioner Mitchell moved to approve Purchase Requisitions over $20,000.
Commissioner Harrelson seconded the motion. Roll call was taken by the Clerk-
Treasurer. Motion carried unanimously.

8. Discussion/Update: Grants and Projects Update:

Assistant City Manager Alvarez gave an update on the City Grants and Projects.
(Complete copy attached hereto and made a part hereof).

J. EXECUTIVE SESSION:
1. Limited Personnel Matters (City Manager Potential Candidates)
Pursuant to 10-15-1(H.2):

Mayor Pro-Tem Hechler made a motion to go into executive session at 10:40 a.m.
to discuss Limited Personnel Matters (City Manager Potential Candidates)
Pursuant to 10-15-1(H.2). Commissioner Mitchell seconded the motion. Roll call
vote was taken by the Clerk-Treasurer. Motion carried unanimously.

Mayor Forrister reconvened the meeting in open session at 11:54 a.m.
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CITY COMMISSION MARCH 8, 2023 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

Mayor Pro-Tem Hechler certified that only matters pertaining to Limited
Personnel Matters (City Manager Potential Candidates) Pursuant to 10-15-1(H.2)
was discussed in Executive Session.

K. RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION; ACTION (if any)
1. Limited Personnel Matters (City Manager potential candidates)
Pursuant to 10-15-1(H.2).

Mayor Pro-Tem Hechler made a motion to offer a contract for the position of City
Manager to candidate Angela Gonzales, effective April 3, 2023. Mayor Forrister
seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously.

L. ADJOURNMENT:

Mayor Forrister adjourned the meeting at 11:56 a.m.

Passed and Approved this 22" day of March, 2023.

Amanda Forrister, Mayor

ATTEST:

Angela A. Torres, CMC, City Clerk
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City of Truth or Consequences Project Status Report
Status Report Date: 2/27/2023

CURRENT FUNDED PROJECTS
DEPT Grant/Loan/Project Number Funding Source Project |.D. GrantAmount | Match Req. Loan Total 1 Status
Asrport 1€5-22-01 INMDOT Aviation Division Fuel Farm Upgrades and Airfield Safety 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 [in design
Airport 7CS-21-03 INMDOT Aviation Division Airfield Maintenance and Consumable items. 20,000.00 | 5 2,000.00
Drainage 5442-WPF NMFA Water Trust Board 202 Cantrell Dam 450,000.00 § 5 75,000.00 { S~ 300,000.00 BLM coordination.
for the problem areas as
[Orainage €1213061 2021 NMOOT Capital Qutlay Drainage Improvements - Planning Document 100,000.00 ’
[Parks 23-418-6002-00021-00 NM Tourism Clean and Beautiful 2022 Recycled Benches 167825 | S 419.56
Parks A22G3024 Capital Appropriation Ralph Edwards Park Improvements 213,000.00
Parks 22-261023-7 NM Reg. Rec Centers/Quality of Life Ralph Edwards Park Improvements 449.019.00
Streets CIF 5192 INMFA Colonias 2020 M5S0 Road Surface improvements {related to MSD Water Project) 900,000.00 100,000.00 | $ 100,000.00°
Streets HW2 L1000526 2022/2023 LGRF NMDOT Cooperative Pine Street Improvements - (Match will be in kind services) 235,227.00 78,409.00 i
Streets Pending Grant Agreement FY¥22 USDOT Safe Streets and Roads for All Vision Zero Safety Action Plan 163,200.00 40,800.00
Wastewater CWSRLF 098 NMED CWSRLF Vacuum Sewer Rehabilitation 100,000.00 - :373,000.00 | § s Report in progress, pending submission to NMED for Review.
(Water CIF 5550 NMFA Colonias 2021 Water System Improvements {covers the shortfall for the DWSRLF Project) 450,000.00 | & 50,000.00 50,000.00 | $ $50,000.00 [Currently in Bidding Phase.
(Water 4794.0W INMFA DWSRLF Marshall St., N. Pershing, 2nd Ave., and Sierra Vista Dr. Wateriine Replacement 620,542.00 620,543.00 1,241,085.00 {Currently in Bidding Phase.
(Water USDA M5D Water Line Replacement USDA-RD WEP MSO Water System Improvements. 3,960,000.00 " 5,452,000.00 9,417,000.00 |Currently in Construction
(Water USDA WA System Impravements Phase 1 {USDA RD WEP Replace Transmission Line Cook to Morgan Booster and replace various Water lines 2,720,000.00 " 4,811,000.00 7.531.000.00 {In Design phase with field surveys completed.
(Water 5089-WPF INMFA Water Trust Board 2020 Booster Station and Austin St. Improvements 384,688.00 71,000.00 § $ 256,458.00 712,146.00 Currently in Bidding Phase.
(Water 22-C-NR-1-01-G-01 [COBG (Water Meter Replacement 750,000.00 75,000.00 825,000.00 |Pending receipt of grant agreement
Wa/ww CN 1101231/CN1101232 NMDOT Project - Local Funds i-25 Business Loop - Ph. 1 Water and Sewer System Relocation/Landscape and Irngation 979,140.36 | 979.140.36 |Currently in Construction
[Plan & Design Water System Impraovements, high pressures issues, Water Meters replacements, and
(Water 8 23-CP-NM-1048 Department of Mousing and Urban Development New Water Well $_ 1,600,000.00 $_1,600,000.00 |Executing Grant Agreement
s | i E
 [CURRENT FUNDED PROJECT TOTALS $:14,117,354.25 [ $ 1,471,768.92 | $:11,968,001.00 | $ 27,557,124.17
Mainstreet Grants - Fiscal Agent Funding Ovesight
419-A20£2046-2101 NM Dept Econ Dev Cap Appropriation Mainstreet Foch Street Improvements $ 1,000,000.00 $ 1,000,000.00
419 A21F2103-2210 NM Dept Econ Dev Cap Appropriation Mainstreet Foch Street Improvements S 320,000.00 $  320,000.00
Total $ 1,320,000.00 $ 1.320,000.00 Plans in review with NMDOT - hope to go ta bid soon
SJOA Senior Center - Fiscal Agent funding Oversight
F2057 Severence Tax Bonds Appropriation SJOA Meal Vehicle Purchase $ 47,000.00 s 47.000.00 Funding shortage for Meal Delivery Vehicie-additional funding request submitted
F2058 Severence Tax Bonds Appropriation SJOA Ken James Senior Center Building Improvements $ 76,000.00 H 76,000.00 Plumbing impravents complete; obtaining quotes for additional improvements
F2059 Severence Tax Bonds Appropriation SIOA Vehicie Purchase H $8.413.00 $ 58,413.00 2 Passenger Vehicles on Order - Combine with Junior Bill Funding
F2060 Severence Tax Bonds Appropriation SJOA MVAC Unit Replacement s 76,000.00 $ 76,000.00 New HVAC installed with Fire suppresant system and air filtration system
A22G2017 Severence Tax Bonds Appropriation Parking Lot Rehab $  100,000.00 $  100,000.00 Working on project scope and quote
A2262018 Severence Tax Bonds Appropriation Vehicles $ 84,000.00 $ 84,000.00 Wheelchair Accessible Van on order
6510000000 ALTSD Junior Bill Operational Costs $ 35,000.00 s 35.000.00 Combine with F2059 ta cover funding shartage
Total $  476413.00 $  476,413.00
PENDING/FUTURE APPLICATIONS
DEPT Grant/toan/Project Number Funding Source Project 1.0 Grant Amount Loan Total Status
FAA uel Farm Upgrades and Airfreld Safet: Working on full scope and application
NMDOY Aviation uel Farm Upgrades and Airfield Safety .T8D Working on full scope and application
Water 78D INMFA DWSRLF mergency Wateriine Replacement 20,000,000.00 20,000.000.00 |Applicatron submtted to DWSRLF - Advocated for funds at Legislative Session
Water 78D 2023 Capital Qutlay (Water Infrastructure Improvements 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00 [Funding request submitted to Capital Outlay
Wastewater 180 2023 Capital Qutlay. Wastewater Treatment Improvements 1.500,000.00 1.500,000.00 [Funding request submitted ta Capital Outiay
18D 2023 Capital Outlay Animal Shefter Kennel Building 450,000.00 450,000.00 Funding request submitted to Capital Qutlay
Streets T80 2023 Capital Qutlay Marie Street Construction 282,000.00 282,000.00 {Funding request submitted to Capital Outlay
T80 FY24 NMDOQT TAP 1,919.828.26 | $§  327.161.74 .00 [Working on Application - 3/15/2023 due date
TBD FY23 Colonias Infrastructure Fund (Water Meter Replacement Project 1750,000.00 | $  75,000.00 | $ 75.000.00 900.000.00 {Working on Application - 3/8/2023 due date
180 FY23/24 NMDOT LGRF Cooperative Agreement Mare Street TBO _|18D - 25% $ Working on Application - 3/15/2023 due date
180 FY23/23 NMDOT LGRF Municipal Artenat Program Pershing & 2nd Stree: T80 TBD- 25% 3 - S Application in progress - Resolution to Commussion 3-8-2022
180 FY24 NMDOT Transportation Project Fund Silver Street TBD BD- 5% Y S -___|Working on Agplication - 3/15/2023 due date
T80 T-Mabile Grant lrrigation System Improvements TBD = > Reviewing Funding guidelines and working on scope of work
TBD FY23 CDBG Planning Grant [Comprehensive Plan $ 50,000.00 5,000.00 - Application in progress with COBG
lFUTUlE FUNDED PROJECT TOTALS $°44,951.828.26 407,161.74 75,000.00 | $°45,378,990.00 |
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CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION
MINUTES
Monday, January 9, 2023

REGULAR MEETING

Regular meeting of the Planning & Zoning Commission of the City of Truth or Consequences, New
Mexico to be held in the City Commission Chambers, 405 W. Third, Truth or Consequences, New Mexico,
on Monday, January 9, 2023 at 4:00 p.m.

INTRODUCTION:
ROLL CALL:

Chris Sisney, Chairman
Susan Buhler, Vice Chairman
Esther Luchini, Member
Eduardo Alicea, Member

ALSO PRESENT:
Bruce Swingle, City Manager
Traci Alvarez, Assistant City Manager
Angela Torres, City Clerk
Lisa Gabaldon, Deputy Clerk

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Member Luchini made a motion to approve the agenda.
Vice-Chairman Buhler seconded the motion.
Motion carried unanimously.

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF DECEMBER 12, 2022

Member Luchini made a motion to approve the minutes.
Member Alicea seconded the motion.
Motion carried unanimously.

3. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC (3 Minute Rule Applies)

Valerie Otero of 124 N. Pershing asked if signage could be put up on W. 2" after the arroyo. On the
south side of the 200 block of 2™, there is an arroyo that goes through there and there is a mountain
that is there. Semi-trucks have gotten stuck and she is wanting to know if it is possible to put a sign up
for semis or buses not to go through there; even some of the City trucks with trailers have run into
problems.

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS (5 Minute Rule Applies)

A. Public Hearing/Discussion/Action —Kennel Special Use Permit for 3500-3710 E 3rd
Traci Alvarez, Assistant City Manager



Assistant City Manager Alvarez: Applicant has an application for a Special use Kennel Permit pertaining
to seasonal housing or kenneling of dogs. The applicant provides housing for dogs for approximately 5-6
months of the year, roughly May-September. Animal control and code enforcement have been
inspected the residence and approved the application request that allows for no more than 14 dogs on
site at any one time. Within your agenda packet you have the applicants application; once again, simifar
to the last meeting for kennel permit, | will refer you guys to Ordinance 725 that’s in your packet,
section 3.8.1 |, where it states that all animals listed on an application 3 months of age or over must be
vaccinated for rabies and possess a City animal license tag. As explained at the P&Z meeting, we are
making an amendment to the ordinance; it was never the intent for it to be all applications. The original
intent was all animals listed on multi-animals; it does not make sense for kennel permits to license dogs
when the dogs don’t necessarily belong and may not even live in town; they’re only kenneling them for
a short period of time. Just reference that. You’ll notice on the application, we did not require the rabies
or City licensing, so we’ll make that amendment. | do believe we’re gonna try and have that to the 2™
Commission meeting to amend that ordinance so it’ll be corrected. You'll also see within your packet
that there is a visual site plan of the property location. | gave a large and a smali; the zoomed in section
shows the property that the dogs are normally housed on. The zoomed out section shows all of the
property that is all owned by the same owner, so everybody surrounding the property where the dogs
are at is owned by the same applicant or family. And with that, | stand for any questions.

Member Luchini: A City license or rabies is not required?

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: Not for kennel use. The kennel area is normally, like if you kennel your
dogs somewhere, they normally require you to have vaccinations in order to kennel. We will have to
have a more internal discussion but from what | can tell from our notes it was the intent for private
owners animals for multi-use, would have to have proof of vaccination and City licensing because it
would be within the City limits. Kennels, they would have to have their records updated so that if any
point in time animal control was to stop by they could show that the animals that are in possession at
that time are vaccinated but they wouldn’t necessarily need to be licensed for the City because they
don’t necessarily reside in the City; they’re just there for a short period of time. Somebody passing
through maybe going out to dinner might need to kennel their dog, we have a local kennel provider; |
know I've done that in the past when we’ve traveled. Kennels are more business or the fostering, the
animals going in and out, which is what last week’s meeting was about was fostering.

Chairman Sisney: Any other questions from the board?

Vice-Chairman Buhler: | do have a question. The officer will have a right though to ask the individual to
show proof of vaccination or a tag or a certificate, is that correct?

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: If that’s the way that we structure the ordinance which, from the
internal bits and pieces, yes. But the ordinance is not structured that way at the time but that was the
intent; was multi-use they had to be at application time, kennel use was going to be if the animal control
officer showed and whatever animals were onsite at that time then the kennel use person would have
to have proof of vaccination for those animals. With kennel permits, your animals usually rotate, they
aren’t the same animals.

Vice-Chairman Buhler: Ok, thank you.
Chairman Sisney: Any other questions from the members?

Member Luchini: How much time...what is the length of time that determines short or temporary or
short-term, long-term, or permanent?



Assistant City Manager Alvarez: | believe...it’s stated within the ordinance, | think it’s 30 days for multi, |
don’t think that it's defined for kennel and those are two things that we have to, upon looking through
some of our notes when we were getting ready to come to you guys last meeting, we realized that some
of the information that we had pertaining to kennel permitting and fostering, wasn’t defined clearly in
here. And so fostering is another one; they may have the dogs for a very short period of time or if they
get animals that are very young, they are going to have them for more than 30 days.

City Clerk Torres: And it does say 30 days in here.

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: Yah, so | think that’s the other one we discussed that we would have to
look at amending for the...

Member Luchini: So you're looking at amending?

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: We have to amend the ordinance, yes. All of the information that we
intended to have go in the ordinance, didn’t quite make it. It got lost via multiple emails back and forth.

Member Luchini: Thank you, that’s all | have.
Chairman Sisney: Any other questions?

Amanda Forrister: My name is Amanda Forrister; | live at 4710 E. Third. My husband is the one that is
applying for the kennel permit. | just want to bring notice that there are, as you guys probably know, the
City does send out letters to interested parties when we are approving these kennel permits. As Ms.
Alvarez stated before, we own everything around it and then there is highway and we have no
neighbors, so the dogs have been there before, never had any complaints. The kennels are also built
with a turnout pen; they’re two-stories with a bed up above so they have a two-story. They’re on double
mats, equipped with misters, a very nice set up. | also, when | have kennel permits on my agenda, 1 kind
of go around and drive and look at different kennel permits and | would say that our kennels are one of
the nicer ones in the City at this time, so | just wanted to bring your attention to that when the letters
went out to interested parties, it was just our family that they went to. With that being said, that’s it.

Chairman Sisney: Thank you. Does the board have any questions? Can we ask questions of the
applicants at this time or should we wait to hear both sides?

City Clerk Torres: | think we should do the proponents and then opponents and then you guys could ask
any questions afterwards.

Vice-Chairman Buhler: Are the officers going to speak to?
City Clerk Torres: Yes, you can ask them to speak if you'd like.
Vice-Chairman Bubhler: Ok, | think ! will.

City Clerk Torres: Is there anybody else who's a proponent of this item that would like to come up and
speak?

Chairman Sisney: Opponents, Kathleen Sloan.

Kathleen Sloan: Kathleen Sloan, 708 Olivo St., Williamsburg



I ask that you make findings of fact and look at evidence from animal control before ruling on the
Forrister’s application for a kennel permit. September 6, 2022 animal control officers Digicomo and Knull
went to the Forrister’s address. November 2, 2022 Digicomo filed a 24 page criminal complaint in
Municipal Court. 14 counts of no dog licenses, 14 counts of no rabies shots, animal cruelty for not
providing potable water, and lastly, exceeding the 4 animal limit, without a special license. There’s
nothing to prove; the pictures in the complaint prove the water was deep green with islands of growth.
Digicomo said that the texture was slimy. The bodycam captures Lane Forrister stating ‘we water them
once a week’. The Forrister’s didn’t produce vaccination or licensing documents, which must be on hand
by law. There's evidence the Forrister’s are incorrigible and therefore should not be allowed to run a
kennel. They plead not guilty to the charges claiming no wrong doing at the arraignment that was in the
first week of November; 'm not sure; | don’t remember the arraignment date. On the bodycam, the
Mayor interrupts Digicomo as she cites the law stating ‘| know what it says, | signed it’; referring to her
duty as Mayor, to sign into law ordinances. 8 months before she signed into law the amended animal
control ordinance, proving that she knew she was flouting the law. On the bodycam, Lane Forrister
insists the chief of police meet with them, as if they are entitled to special treatment. Chief of police
Victor Rodriguez met with them the next day, but he should’ve avoided that conflict of interest meeting.
He's an at will employee, a subordinate, he could be fired by the City Commission. The government
conduct act states it is illegal for a government official, such as the Mayor, to use her power for her own
benefit, such as to avoid criminal prosecution. The Forrister’s claimed at their arraignment that they
made a deal with Rodriguez, but an inspection of public records act request bears out that no such
document exists. If there’s no document, there’s no deal, unless you believe in backroom good ol’ boy
government. Save these future dogs. Please do not grant the Forrister’'s a kennel permit. You are the
most likely check and balance here; the animal control and planning and zoning administrator are at will
employees as well; they could be fired if they go up against the Mayor. Digicomo is gone, probably
because it was too hard to do her job and the City Commission; Shelly Harrelson in particular was
cracking jokes about green scum at the last City meeting, which got a big laugh all around at the City
Commission level; meaning that they probably will grant this kennel permit. Thank you.

Chairman Sisney: Alright.
City Clerk Torres: Are there any other opponents who would like to speak?

Chairman Sisney: Alright, we will now close public comments on this item, the kennel at 3500 3" Street.
Does anybody on the board have any questions?

Vice-Chairman Buhler: Well, | do have a question or two. | have a question about this application, it has
a date at the top that’s September 15 and then at the bottom it’s a different date. At the bottom, its
11/06; they’re different dates.

City Clerk Torres: So this is when, the top date is when they submit their application to the City; the
bottom date is when it’s signed off on by our Code Enforcement & our Animal Control.

Vice-Chairman Buhler: Ok, who is the Code Enforcement person that signed this?
City Clerk Torres: Jamie

Code Enforcement Officer Sweeney: That's my signature; I'm the one that did the inspection for both
code enforcement and animal control at the inspection.

Vice-Chairman Buhler: The dogs were not there when you inspected, correct?



Code Enforcement Officer Sweeney: They were not, no. | think that wrote in there.

Vice-Chairman Buhler: You did, it’s kind of a scribbled application.

Code Enforcement Officer Sweeney: | did write on there the reason why the dogs are not there is
because from the months of October-April they’re working; it varies if they’re on the property, it's for a
short minute during those selected months because that is the hunting months that they’re used for
working.

Vice-Chairman Buhler: Were you there for the original finding when this happened?

Code Enforcement Officer Sweeney: | was here for just the inspection. | was not part with animal control
in the September incident.

Vice-Chairman Buhler: | have a question too. Is this still in some type of litigation?

City Manager Swingle: Yes, there are charges that are going to be adjudicated through the court system,
not through the City. The City has no involvement in that.

Vice-Chairman Buhler: Ok, thank you. Does anyone else have a question?

Chairman Sisney: | do. There’s a lot of questions here and information here that needs to be brought up.
Let’s just get right to what’s going on with the lawsuit; I’'m ignorant of this and I’d like to know what's
going on.

City Manager Swingle: There is no lawsuit.

Chairman Sisney: I'm sorry, let me clarify then. What’s going on with the kennel?

City Clerk Torres: Do you want the applicants to come up and answer your question?

Code Enforcement Officer Sweeney: | think you’re trying to refer to the incident from September the
kennel permit; | just did the inspection on it, that’s as far as I...

Vice-Chairman Buhler: | have one other question, have the Forrister’s ever applied for another
application...a permit to your knowledge?

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: You’d have to verify with the City Clerk’s Office, this is a new process.

City Clerk Torres: Off the top of my head, I'm not really sure since I’'m not up in the front. | don’t check
every single one, that would be something...| don’t have that in front of me.

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: Let me remind the board that this is a new ordinance and so that’s why
all of these are coming about with the animal permits, multi-use and everything because we amended
and revised the ordinance.

Member Alicea: Are all of the dogs fosters or were they taken away?

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: | would say that if you have questions regarding the charges, your
applicant is right there to answer questions.



Chairman Sisney: Ok. Ms. Forrister, so could you fill us in on what is going on and why you are here?

Amanda Forrister: Well, we’re here for the kennel permit and that’s what this board does is approving
the kennel permit. What is happening in court that will be proven in court.

Chairman Sisney: ok, V'd still like to know why it’s been brought up.

Amanda Forrister: Why what has been brought up?

Chairman Sisney: What is going on with the dogs? Why is there a problem with dogs?
Lane Forrister: There is not a problem with the dogs...

Amanda Forrister: It was a difference of opinion and that will be proven in court. We have working dogs
and we're here to approve a kennel permit.

Chairman Sisney: Could you tell me what’s going on? What were people...what was the complaint?
Lane & Amanda Forrister: Nobody complained.

Chairman Sisney: There was no complaint?

Lane & Amanda Forrister: No.

Lane Forrister: The lady come onto our property without permission and come to our place and then of
course whatever she read, wrote us tickets for numerous things.

Amanda Forrister: And | will also say that even though this is a court thing, this is not a kennel thing. We
do have our vaccinations, we were never asked that.

Chairman Sisney: That part...

Amanda Forrister: And when | said yes, | understand the ordinance because | signed it, yes | do. | signed
it and since | have signed it | have been working with Traci because I’'m one of the ones that looked at
permitting and the application is different from the new ordinance that was signed.

Chairman Sisney: Let me make it clear, | am not challenging you. | don’t know what’s going on.

Amanda Forrister: | just want to make it clear that this is for a kennel permit and | don’t want to get into
the lawsuit.

Chairman Sisney: Ok, that’s fine, | understand that, but I’d still like to know the extenuating
circumstances here. | think that’s fair to be...it's been brought up and I'd like to know.

Lane Forrister: What would you like to know about the dogs?
Chairman Sisney: SO, somebody came on your property regarding...
Lane Forrister: Animal control

Chairman Sisney: Yes. They called animal control?



Lane Forrister: There was a call saying 3 dogs at large on our 25 acres that we own.
Amanda Forrister: Which there was not.

Lane Forrister: There was not dogs on there and so they drove around our property and then found
where we keep our animals at.

Chairman Sisney: Are you saying ‘our animals’?
Lane Forrister: Mine and my wife's, yes.

Chairman Sisney: Alright, so is this...these animals, are these the same animals that we’re discussing
here for this kennel permit?

Lane Forrister: Some of them, like we said, that’s why this kennel permit has not happened yet is
because we don’t own just 14 dogs. We have a business, we own numerous, numerous dogs; 30-40
dogs. Every now and then yes, we bring them here. We have property in Winston; we have property on
the other side of Caballo.

Chairman Sisney: Thank you. This is the type of information | want.

Amanda Forrister: And these are working dogs.

Chairman Sisney: What is the nature of the business, the use of the dogs, how many dog, whose dogs
they are?

Amanda Forrister: They are owned by a business, which there are different members of that business.
Our kennel can hold 14 and that’s what they approved us for.

Chairman Sisney: And these are bird dogs, | take it?

Lane Forrister: They are hunting dogs, yes; lion dogs and cow dogs.

Chairman Sisney: Lion dogs and what?

Lane & Amanda Forrister: Lion dogs and cattle dogs.

Chairman Sisney: So you got cow dogs and you got lion hunting dogs?

Lane & Amanda Forrister: Yes sir.

Chairman Sisney: Ok, and these are your dogs and you hire them out to hunters.
Lane Forrister: Yes, to take them hunting, yes; they pay me money.

Chairman Sisney: And to do roundups?

Lane Forrister: Yes. We own cattle, but yes.

Amanda Forrister: We have 2 ranches also in the Gila, Black Range, and Engle as well.



Chairman Sisney: Ok, so the reason why | thought this was a business for kenneling dogs, but it's not
really a business for kenneling dogs. You need a kennel because you have a bunch of dogs for your
business which is...

Lane Forrister: The City is requiring us to have one, so we're getting one.

Chairman Sisney: Alright, | think that answers my question. Does anyone else have a question?

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: | do have a question. Are the dogs that you have there, do all of them
belong to you or do you have other people that the dogs belong to?

Lane & Amanda Forrister: Yes, we have other people that they belong to.

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: That needs to be clarified. They aren’t all their dogs; they’re dogs that
belong to other people that are within their business.

Member Luchini: Is it always the same dogs or just 14 spaces so you can just bring 14 dogs?

Lane Forrister: Yes. When I'm hunting over here, | bring them here; during the summer when they’re not
hunting either Winston or here.

Member Luchini: So there can be 14 different dogs at any time?
Lane & Amanda Forrister: Yes.
Member Luchini: But they’re all vaccinated?

Lane & Amanda Forrister: Yes. And like | said, the lady had never asked us if they were vaccinated, she
just wrote us a ticket for it.

Vice-Chairman Buhler: You could’ve brought that here today.

Lane Forrister: They’re here.

Vice-Chairman Buhler: They're here?

Lane Forrister: Oh yah.

City Clerk Torres: And if you live out in Winston, you’re not required to have a City permit.
Vice-Chairman Buhler: Right, county is different.

Lane Forrister: | do it anyways. You gotta realize, these are...

Amanda Forrister: We take care of the dogs.

Lane Forrister: They’re not pets, they are employees. | mean they make us money. The dogs are taken
very well care of. The green slime that they found, yes, there was green slime in there. That was in a

pen, a turnout pen, that we leave water in just in case a dog gets out of its whole deal.

Chairman Sisney: Ok. Are the kennels functioning right now?



Lane & Amanda Forrister: Yes.

Vice-Chairman Buhler: So the dogs are here now?

Lane Forrister: They are here right now; some of them are here, yes.
Chairman Sisney: Any other questions for the Forrister’s?

Amanda Forrister: Thank you

Chairman Sisney: Officer Sweeney, can | ask you a question? You can check to see if this is proper but,
I'd like to ask what your opinion is Officer Sweeney.

Code Enforcement Officer Sweeney: So, | went out there; we do have a checklist, we also check the
wellbeing of the dogs. 1 did ask how many dogs max that they have on that property and they did say 14.
The pen that they have, the turnout pen, how that pen is it’s massive. And inside that pen they have so
many pens. It’s kind of like an L shape. And inside those pens, easily could probably fit 2 dogs each. I'm
sure they probably don’t put 2 dogs each but inside that one, they have 2 layers and it’s off the ground
and what we look at when we look at kenneling, especially when they don’t have free range to run, is if
the dog can stand up, turn around, and lay down very comfortably and the kennel size allows that. |
even asked them what size it was, he said that they’re about a 5x8; it’s pretty massive. And then on the
outside, they have another area so the dogs can actually, if they manage to get out of their kennel,
they’re still contained within that. It looked very clean. Again, the animals were not there; we always
want to look at the animals, if we don’t see them, so I could not see them inside. Inside the kennels, but
just given the size of them, | could definitely make out that they are adequate size enough for the dogs,
even a very large breed, a massive breed, so that looked to be ok. The containers were cleaned; they
were not there, again. | wouldn’t expect them to have water and food if the dogs are out working, so |
couldn’t check to see that. The pens were free from debris; they didn’t have things that they could tear
up, which we could find out being there. They have misters so during the summer months, they have
misters to keep the animals cool and then they also have wood chips or things like that to keep them
warm during the winter montbhs if they come. During the winters months is usually when they’re gone
anyways, but when they are here, they have something in the pens to kind of keep them warm. | mean
the pen looks nice. | mean, given just what we’re supposed to check, it met all the points on the
checklist, as well as on my code enforcement side, there was no debris laying around, something that
the animals could get hurt themselves on or get ahold of and kill them. The pen was very clean given the
amount of dogs that could be there. There was a little, few piles of poop, but given the amount of dogs, |
mean, what | saw was nothing.

Chairman Sisney: So in your, Officer Sweeney, in your professional opinion, there is no reason to
disapprove their request?

Code Enforcement Officer Sweeney: Given on my checklist, no there is nothing. They meet all the
requirements.

Vice-Chairman Buhler: But you didn’t see the dogs.
Code Enforcement Officer Sweeney: | didn’t see the dogs, no.
Amanda Forrister: Can | say one more thing. And | will speak on what Ms. Sloan was talking about

earlier, because you were asking. The ex-chief of police did come out after we were cited by animal
control and he came out because we wanted somebody to mitigate between us and animal control. The



difference of opinion on what dogs should look like. He came out the day after, dogs all there and
agreed that maybe we just had a difference of opinion on what an active working dog should look like.
And that is when we had the agreement with animal control that as long as we moved forward with
getting our kennel permit, which we were already in the works of doing so, then she would be fine
without filing charges, because she agreed that we showed her our feed room, there’s plenty of feed,
we explained the situation with the water, everything was fine. So that was that conversation, if that
helps you in any situation.

Chairman Sisney: Thank you.

Vice-Chairman Buhler: | do have one last question. How long have you been having the dogs there? How
much time have the dogs been out there?

Amanda Forrister: 9 years.

Lane Forrister: We’ve never gotten one complaint.

Vice-Chairman Buhler: But you’ve never gotten a permit either.

Amanda Forrister: Because they’ve never been in town long enough and until | became aware of what
the ordinance was is when we were in the process of, when | signed the new ordinance, in the process
of getting a kennel because they were not there. We had never had a complaint; we have 25 acres in
City limits with no neighbors.

Lane Forrister: Can | add to that? It also states that these dogs don’t do business in City limits; they do
business in the county and that was something that, you know, we didn’t think that we needed one
because we are not doing business in the City with these dogs.

City Clerk Torres: It wasn’t required under the old ordinance.

Lane Forrister: We did business out of the City limits which is a county issue, that’s why we hadn’t
gotten the kennel license.

Member Luchini: Why do you bring them to town?

Lane Forrister: That's just where we live.

Amanda Forrister: That is where we live and if were not gonna be hunting for the next couple of days or
anyone in the business is not hunting or whatever, then it’s easier for us to feed, water, and take care of
them when they're there; and then we can split the whoever else has dogs, we can all split the workload
basically. And if he’s at home, he brings them and if he’s gone, which is a lot, then he takes them.

Member Luchini: So the 6 months that they’re not here, are they with you?

Lane Forrister: Yes, at one of our other properties. Sometimes the dogs that we’re not using we spread
them out between different people within the business.

Amanda Forrister: We have other people’s cow dogs, it's a midpoint between 2 places where some
people live up there and we live down here.



Lane Forrister: Whenever we take clients that come into the City, they stay hotels; they eat the City’s
food and enjoy the hot springs. We bring revenue to the City.

Amanda Forrister: Any other questions?

Chairman Sisney: | do

Ruth Claassen: Can | make a comment on their behalf?

City Clerk Torres: No, because we already closed the public hearing.

Chairman Sisney: Anymore questions for the board? Would anyone like to make a motion?
Vice-Chairman Buhler: Well | would like to say one thing. | would like to see things resolved and the
ordinances the way they’re supposed to be maybe before we make a decision because there’s some
problems. And | don’t want to say that you’re not good or this isn’t right or that’s not right because |

don’t know that. | just don’t know that.

Amanda Forrister: Based on the facts that you were given and what the ordinance is, then you should
make a decision based off that.

Vice-Chairman Buhler: Well the dogs were not there; she did not get to see the dogs and she’s not the
original officer that went out there.

Amanda Forrister: As we’ve already said, the kennel permit is what you’re approving, you’re not...

City Clerk Torres: At this point you would either make a motion to approve the kennel permit that’s
presented or to not approve it, for recommendation to the Commission.

Chairman Sisney: Does anyone want to make a motion?

Member Alicea: | will say nay for the time being because there’s a lot that’s going on for me. They got
some legal things going on and something’s not approved yet.

City Clerk Torres: So you’re making a motion to not approve it?

Member Alicea: Yes.

City Clerk Torres: Ok, is there a second to that motion?

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: Chairman, member of the board, also keep in mind these permits have
to be renewed annually and at any point in time during the year our animal control and/or our code
enforcement officer can go by at any time and take a look and see if there’s any issues or concerns. But
once a year, they do have to be renewed and at that time things will be checked again.

Vice-Chairman Buhler: My whole thing is fairness and we had a lot of people come in here for permits.

Chairman Sisney: Not for kennel permits.

Vice-Chairman Buhler: Not for kennel permits, right. We have had people come in here.



Member Luchini: What about the foster?
Chairman Sisney: That was a different situation, that was people with a bunch of dogs that later came
out that they weren’t foster dogs.

City Clerk Torres: So as of right now, we have a motion on the table to not approve it, is there a second
on that? If not, the motion will die and then we’ll need a new motion on the table.

Chairman Sisney: Would anyone second the motion to dent the permit? Without a second, the motion
dies. I'lt make a motion to approve the kennel permit. Is there a second?

City Clerk Torres: You guys will have to have a vote either to approve it or to not approve it.
Chairman Sisney: Or the motion dies.

City Clerk Torres: Those are the two options that you guys have on the table to approve it or not
approve it. It's just...

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: Is there any other questions that we can answer to help you make a
determination one way or another. | mean, as the P&Z board, it is your responsibility to make the
recommendation for either approval or denial.

Vice-Chairman Buhler: | wish that Jay Rubin would’'ve been here today. | might have had some questions
for him.

City Manager Swingle: What other questions?

Vice-Chairman Buhler: Well, you know, this is a hot potato, that’s my feeling on it. 'm not...| have seen
some of the newspaper, I've read the newspaper, and | did see it on the Albuquerque news channel, so
there are some questions and there’s some problems. Now as I've said before, | don’t want to judge
anyone or say someone was right or wrong because | don’t have all of the facts.

Amanda Forrister: That’s what the court is for.

Vice-Chairman Buhler: Well you know, | know what it’s for. We don’t have all the people here who were
involved with this either. Are we able to table this matter until we get more information>

City Manager Swingle: No.

Amanda Forrister: It’s for a kennel permit.

City Clerk Torres: So right now, what we have to do, we have to go by what was presented. We do have
testimony from our code enforcement; we do have our applicants that spoke, your proponents and
opponents that spoke, so basically what we need to do is make a motion off of what was presented not
what was in the paper or on the radio or what Karen is saying to Alicia. You know like, we have to
have...We have a motion to approve it, is there a second? Because you guys could, if you don’t want to
approve it, you can...

Member Luchini: | make a motion to approve it.

Chairman Sisney: I've made the motion.



City Clerk Torres: So you second?
Member Luchini: I'll second the motion.

City Clerk Torres: Ok, so we'll do a roll call vote and you guys can either vote yay or nay on this.

City Manager Swingle: Would you repeat the question so that they all know.

t

Chairman Sisney: | make the motion to approve the application as presented. Can | get a second?
Member Luchini: | second the motion.
Chairman Sisney: Thank you.

Deputy Clerk Gabaldon: Chris Sisney — Aye, Susan Buhler — Aye, Esther Luchini — Aye, Eduardo Alicea —
Nay

Vice-Chairman Buhler: And | hope that there will be inspections made and that you will have to renew
your permit.

City Clerk Torres: And so right now, so the motion carried with a 3-1 vote so now it will be presented to
the Commission at a future meeting for the City Commission.

B. Public Hearing/Discussion/Action — Summary Plat 280 W. 2" and 154 N. Lane
Traci Alvarez, Assistant City Manager

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: Chairman, members of the board, applicants have the property at 280
W. 2" as well as 154 N. Lane; it's all considered one parcel at this time. They would like to split that
parcel to move the lot line between the 280 W. 2" and 154 N. Lane to the west so that all of 154 N. Lane
carport is within that property line. Both lots still meet the minimum required for the district; utility
verification was approved by electric and 1 was able to get a verbal from our water/wastewater director
and as stated in the scope that's also in your agenda packet, separate water and sewer is available at
both properties. With that, | stand for questions.

Member Luchini: I understand you're selling the property.

Chairman Sisney: We have 2 people signed up as proponents and none as opponents, so we would like
to hear from the Claassen’s please.

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: And they are the applicants.
Chairman Sisney: Yes, they are the applicants; Ruth and Rich Claassen please.

Ruth Claassen: It will probably just be me, | am Ruth Claassen and this is my husband Rich. We bought
these properties in 1997 so we’ve lived there for over 25 years. The little house above us which is the
280 W. 2™ house has been a rental that entire time and they were actually two separate properties
when we bought them but they’re just right next to each other. What we’re hoping...the renter has
always parked up at the dead end of that street, which is 2" Street on the west side of the water tower
hill...on the east side of the water tower hill, sorry. Renter has always parked in front of their home at
280 W. 2" and we've always parked in front of our home, which is 154 N. Lane on the north end of our
house. The line is kind of in the middle of our driveway. We are just requesting to move that property
line over to a retaining wall that is actually a wall between the two properties, which makes sense. There



is also, when we had the survey done recently, there was up the hill on that property as well, there’s a
fence, a chain link fence that was put up prior to us purchasing that place, so it’s been there for more
than 25 years, and they said that the corner post of that fence is also not right and it's 4 feet that needs
to be moved intro that 280 W. 2" property. | mean, it is in the 280 W. 2™ property, that corner post is,
so we'd like that to be just become part of how that dividing line is so that no one has to move that
fence, which is in a very precarious place up the hill; a very awkward place. If that could just be...if that
line could be moved as well. That's basically it.

Chairman Sisney: Please don’t leave yet. I'm looking at, this is the picture that | have and it looks like one
building. Where is the...

Ruth Claassen: Did you happen to bring the big pictures that we had?
Assistant City Manager Alvarez: | didn’t, no.

Ruth Claassen approached the board members to show them exactly what she is referring to with a
picture of the property.

Vice-Chairman Buhler: Would the lot, the rest of the property, be able to be sold with what you're
wanting to do?

Ruth Claassen: Yes, we have an interested buyer.

Member Luchini: And the corner of the chain link fence belongs to who?

Ruth Claassen: It's on our property.

Chairman Sisney: So what’s being fixed is we’re moving from here to here, just that right there.
Ruth Claassen: Yes.

Chairman Sisney: So that was the surveyor’s mistake or what?

Ruth Claassen: Well, the surveyor that we just had do this is from Las Cruces, | don’t know...I mean that’s
probably where they thought it was originally, but it wasn’t exactly on the property line.

Chairman Sisney: But that was on the piece of property that you're trying to sell, and it’s all one piece so
what does it matter?

Ruth Claassen: Because this piece here is going to someone and then we want to sell our place.

City Clerk Torres: So do we have any more questions for Ms. Claassen or would we like to call to see if
we have any other proponents at this time?

Chairman Sisney: There is no one else on the list.

City Clerk Torres: Is there anybody else in the audience that would like to speak as a proponent? How
about an opponent just so we can have that on record? Any opponents?

Chairman Sisney: Does the board have any more questions for anyone in the room? Would someone like
to make a motion?



Vice-Chairman Buhler made a motion to approve the summary plat.
Member Alicea seconded the motion.

Chris Sisney — Aye

Susan Buhler — Aye

Esther Luchini — Aye

Eduardo Alicea - Aye

City Clerk Torres: Motion carried.

5. REPORTS FROM THE BOARD
Nothing to report at this time.
6. REPORTS FROM STAFF

City Clerk Torres: Both of these items will be presented to our City Commission at second meeting in
January, which will be on January 25, 2023.

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: We will submit this for final approval to the City Commission.

7. ADJOURNMENT

Vice-Chairman Buhler made a motion to adjourn the meeting.
Member Luchini seconded the motion.
Motion carried unanimously.

PASSED AND APPROVED ON THIS 13th DAY OF MARCH 2023.

-

Al

Chris Sianb,
Planning & Zoning Commission Chairman
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CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION
MINUTES
Monday, February 13, 2023

REGULAR MEETING

Regular meeting of the Planning & Zoning Commission of the City of Truth or Consequences, New
Mexico to be held in the City Commission Chambers, 405 W. Third, Truth or Consequences, New Mexico
on Monday, February 13, 2023 at 4:00 p.m.

1’

INTRODUCTION:
ROLL CALL:

Chris Sisney, Chairman

Susan Buhler, Vice Chairman
Esther Luchini, Member - ABSENT
Eduardo Alicea, Member

ALSO PRESENT:
Bruce Swingle, City Manager
Traci Alvarez, Assistant City Manager
Lisa Gabaldon, Deputy Clerk

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

The following changes were made to the agenda to accommodate Code Enforcement Officer Sweeney;
under New Business move 5d to 5a.

Chairman Sisney made a motion to approve the agenda with change.

Vice-Chairman Buhler seconded the motion.

Motion carried unanimously.

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF JANUARY 8, 2023

Vice-Chairman Buhler asked to have the part where she asked City Manager Swingle if they could table
the Forrister item and he said no.

Chairman Sisney made a motion to approve the minutes with changes.

Member Alicea seconded the motion.

Motion carried unanimously.

3. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC (3 Minute Rule Applies)

Diane Gunning spoke regarding the final building plans for Block 30 Palomas subdivision
#3022079415169 (attached).

George Henson, 731 Wyona; commented on Diane Gunning’s topic. Mr. Henson stated that he has lived
here for 15 years and seen very few things built; he thinks that the board needs to have time and effort
put in to figure out what is safe and sound for streets and drainages. He has taken pictures from above
and the unfinished riff raff that has undercut the brand-new sidewalk along the main street to the new
dollar store. The new dollar store hasn’t finished any of their containments. The large expansive
concrete is gonna be a big flow that goes onto the sidewalks and into the drainage that will be damned



up behind this guy’s property. He has a background in plumbing and he understands what can happen if
you don’t drain something properly.

4. NEW BUSINESS:
a. Discussion/Action — EAA Airport Campsites, Assistant City Manager Alvarez

Assistant City Manager Alvarez gave an overview of the agenda item and then introduced Larry
Mullenax from the EAA and the Airport Advisory board to better explain the plans for the airport.

Larry Mullenax explained that their intention is to provide a place for transient pilots, where they would
fly in and park their planes and put up a tent under their wing and maybe have a small campfire. Their
plan is to build 3 campsites at the south end of the tarmac; there will be a sunshade over the pichic
tables at each location and a small fire ring. There will be an overnight fee charged for the pilots to stay;
the City will work on that portion. There will be 3 tie downs. They would need to contact the airport in
order to request an overnight stay.

Assistant City Manager Alvarez stated that once they get the approval from the Planning & Zoning Board
and then the approval of FAA for you guys to proceed forward, they would task the Airport Advisory
Board to start coming up with some guidelines working with the airport on what they would charge and
what the process and procedure is, and that would be recommended to the City Commission for final
approval. She stated that it is important to know that the EAA is funding this; this isn’t something that
the City or the airport budget has to do. The EAA is looking at their fundraisers to make this happen.

Vice-Chairman Buhler stated that wood and fire for our area could be dangerous and they make gas fire
pits that are much safer and would be better than wood. She went on to say that she feels that this is a
good idea and would be an attribute to our airport.

Vice-Chairman Buhler made a motion to approve the EAA Campsites.
Member Alicea seconded the motion.
Motion carried unanimously.

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS (5 Minute Rule Applies)

a. Public Hearing/Discussion/Action —Special Use Multi Animal Permit 1415 Platinum Street,
Assistant City Manager Alvarez

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: Chairman, members of the board, in your packet you have an
application for the residence at 1415 Platinum for multi-animal permit. The application request is for 13
dogs. Animal control and code enforcement have inspected the residence and they’ve approved the
application. You also have a copy of the current ordinance in your packet. Per our current ordinance a
maximum of 7 animals are allowed on a multi-use however I think it's very important to note that
before this ordinance took place, our applicants followed all City rules and they were doing the kennel
permit which was the past procedure, so they have been in compliance with City, it’s really our
ordinance that has put them out of compliance. Applicants are in the audience here and with that we
can open public hearing and | stand for questions.

Chairman Sisney: Alright, we have one name and that’s lessica Chavez.

Jessica Chavez: Ok, so | have 13 dogs and our oldest one is 10. The reason we have so many is our
female, we let her outside when she was in heat and she had puppies. We kept all the litter but one and
we decided when we were gonna keep them we took the mom and the babies and we got all fixed; so,
they’re all fixed, there’s no more puppies to be had. We put up a whole privacy fence around our
property so if people are walking by the dogs wouldn’t intimidate them and people cannot intimidate



our dogs. They’re chipped, we’ve always had them vaccinated, we’ve always kept up with our kennel
license. We do have 4 males that are not fixed and we haven’t got them fixed because none of the
females can go into heat. I’'ve never had any calls on me for animal control. I've never had any
complaints from anybody. My dogs don’t get out. As far as now, if | have to put any of my dogs down or
if something happens, I’'m not getting any more dogs. So, if something does happen and we have to put
them down or they start passing away, we’re not getting anymore, | already told my husband. My dogs
are healthy. They don’t get out of the yard. They don’t bother anybody. We spend almost $300 every 2
weeks to feed them. We would just like to keep our animals if we can; our dogs.

Chairman Sisney: Thank you. Does anyone have any questions for Ms. Chavez?
Member Alicea: You said that you have some female dogs that aren’t fixed?

Jessica Chavez: No, | have 4 males that aren’t fixed but all the females are. We put up a privacy fence.
We turned our huge carport in that came with our house, we turned it into a dog kennel for them to
sleep in at night. We do out our dogs up at 6:30 at night. They have heat lamps. In the summer time
they have an air conditioner so they’re very spoiled. But there’s no more puppies, they're fixed. We
spent about $6000 to keep the dogs and we wanted to keep them because we felt that we let the
female get pregnant and so it was our responsibility to take care of them instead of them ending up in
the pound or in a bad home. And, the puppies are 6 now, so we’ve had them for 6 years.

Vice-Chairman Buhler: Well | commend you for keeping up with your application; | commend you for
that.

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: Chairman and members of the board, animal control and code
enforcement are here as well if you want to confirm the inspection.

Vice-Chairman Buhler: You checked off on everything, right?
Code Enforcement Officer Sweeney: Yes

Vice-Chairman Buhler: ok, and they’ve had all of their shots and everything? You've supplied that and no
one is here to complain, so that’s good.

Jessica Chavez: Thank you

Chairman Sisney: | have a question for the City. My question is if we got a problem with writing up these
codes then what’s the point? What’s the point in writing these codes if everybody is just coming in and
getting a variance? And then the ones that we disapprove City Council approves anyway.

City Manager Swingle: This applicant isn’t requesting a variance. She’s asking for a permit. She’s trying to
get a kennel permit. Kennel permits did not exist...a multi-animal, I'm sorry. That didn’t exist in the past,
it does now.

Chairman Sisney: Let me rephrase my question, because I'm actually not asking, I'm curious here. It just
seems like pretty soon we’re gonna be at a point where we’re gonna have to approve everybody’s
request because we’ve approved everybody’s request so far.

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: Chairman, members of the board if | may, | think the intent of this
ordinance is to start getting a handle and control on the amount of animals that people are taking in.
The ones that are coming to you now are ones have owned these animals for a long time and they’ve
been in compliance with the City until we wrote the new ordinance, so to not approve somebody that’s
been in compliance for years, you're essentially asking them to get rid of or put down a pet that’s been



in their family for a long time. The intent of the ordinance is, as we proceed forward to maybe guide
people to not start having this many animals.

Chairman Sisney: Ok, so | just don’t see how we're slowing anything down if these keep getting
approved. We had those down on Caballo and we denied all of them and the City Council approved
them all. And these were the people thar were getting complaints. If we set.a precedence, how are we
gonna be able to deny anyone from here on out.

City Manager Swingle: Chairman, members of the committee, | think that the Commission approved;
there were a number of alternatives that were listed, that you all even discussed, and they complied
with all of those conditions that were set for the property owner and they made those changes. One
was fencing, things of that nature, those things were done, so the Commission did approve them.

Chairman Sisney: We did not approve that; we did not make any recommendation.
City Manager Swingle: No, you declined those two, you voted against them.
Vice Chairman Buhler: Correct.

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: So, 1 think just like with our animal shelter, you can’t solve everything
overnight, but by having all of our animals in the shelter being spayed and neutered before they’re
adopted out, we're gonna see a lot less animals out there running around; it's gonna help with the
population. That's the intent of this ordinance as well. You’re not gonna see instantaneous results, but
what we are gonna see is a lot less people within our community coming to you with multi-use because
they’re gonna stay within the allowable amount.

Vice-Chairman Buhler: Can | ask you a question, you just mentioned where people go and they adopt
the animals, do they keep track of how many animals someone might adopt?

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: Yes
Vice-Chairman Buhler: Ok, that’s good.

City Manager Swingle: | think something to remember, when we have the public hearings on these,
when you have people that come and speak in opposition, if they’re legitimate reasons, surely everyone
can understand that, but if they're in a location that is not harming anyone, what’s wrong with
approving the permit?

Vice Chairman Buhler: You know the other thing is too Bruce, that the people that have a lot of animals,
we have to know that those animals are cared for. They can’t be abused or the animals have a right too,
so | look at that too.

Chairman Sisney: My point is, if we keep saying no and it gets approved anyway, where’s the teeth in
the law? It just seems kind of a waste of time to me from what I've seen so far. And what about the
people that complain and don’t want to listen to people’s dogs barking all the time? That was the
problem on Caballo, is everyone that came up and spoke and said that they can’t have church because
the dogs are barking all the time. That’s my point is because a lot of people don’t want to listen to dogs
barking.

City Manager Swingle: That's a perfect example Mr. Chair of they put up the fencing that was asked of
them and the church came forward and said that the problem had been resolved, that the fencing
solved their problem.



Chairman Sisney: That didn’t come before us.

City Manager Swingle: No, that went to the Commission.

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: City Commission put it in as a public hearing.

Chairman Sisney: Alright, thank you for answering my question.

Member Alicea: In this situation with Jessica that they had this situation prior to this ordinance?

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: Everyone that’s come to you so far has been a situation where they've
had their animals prior to the ordinance, yes.

Member Alicea: Is there a way to resolve the situation without because we have been here and when
we have this new situation with these codes, that its contrast with this situation.

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: I'm not sure what you’re asking.

Member Alicea: | don’t think that people like her situation should come necessarily here to beg for their
dogs.

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: They're coming here through a process.
Member Alicea: This code is starting for new people.
City Manager Swingle: It’s for both.

Member Alicea: She has all these dogs; she’s concerned that she has to put them down because people
don’t want them to have them so is there a way to work differently. As long as you keep bringing them
here, we're gonna have this situation, so people are upset. These codes are here.

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: So, you're asking us not bring these to the board if they’re pre-existing
already?

Member Alicea: When they’re coming to us here, we’re assuming like they’re new.

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: So they're here and they’re registering so that puts them in animal
control and code enforcement put them kind of on their file so that they can regularly check the animals
and then every year they’ll have to come back and renew, so that we can ensure that she doesn’t come
back a year from now and all of a sudden she’s requesting 15 dogs; then we’ll know that she’s not
following the compliance. It’s just a process and procedure. The applicant would like to know if she can
speak.

Vice Chairman Buhler: Yes

Jessica Chavez: The way that | understood it and the reason I'm here, I'll follow any compliance if | have
to go down to the 7 dog limit, | mean it will hurt me to have to pick and choose which dogs, but | want
to follow every rule and we have since we decided to keep the dogs but the way that { understood it and
the reason why I'm here is because | had always filed for a kennel license and now that the new
ordinance because it’s a multi-family license, 1 don’t qualify for a kennel permit anymore because | don’t
run a business. So, | don’t want you guys to feel that because I'm old to this whole thing and coming into
this whole new ordinance, I'll follow any compliance that you guys want me to do. And I don’t want this
to have to be a make or break where...



Vice-Chairman Buhler: Traci, they sent out letters to the neighbors, right?
Assistant City Manager Alvarez: Correct, yes, everybody has been sent certified letters.
lessica Chavez: I've never gotten a call; our dogs don’t get out.

Vice-Chairman Buhler: You know, | think that you're doing it the right way; you’re following the rules
and | appreciate that so 'm good...

Jessica Chavez: That was my understanding to be here, I’'m not trying to get grandfathered in because
I've had this for the past 6 years. It's because | have to have the multi-animal because | can’t qualify for a
kennel permit anymore because | don't run a business.

Vice-Chairman Buhler: Now will she have to come back?
Assistant City Manager Alvarez: Yes, annually.

City Manager Swingle: Mr. Chair and members of the board, had we had complaints, we’d be having a
whole different conversation. But there have been no complaints. The neighbors have been notified of
this meeting today, this hearing today. Animal control verified that they haven’t had any calls. They've
inspected the property and it complies with all of their basic needs for the animals, so from our
perspective, we don’t see any reason not to approve it.

Chairman Sisney: Again, that was not my point. | appreciate the fact that she has no complaints. | would
approve her request for that fact but the other ones, we have lots of complaints. So, I'm just saying that
we’re gonna get stuck where we’re gonna have to how are we gonna be able to disapprove of anybody
if we approve anybody who comes up; that was my point, that was all | was trying to say. So, on the
topic, | make a motion to approve Ms. Chavez's request for a variance on the 7-animal limit...

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: We're not asking for a variance just for a multi-animal permit.
Vice-Chairman Buhler: it's a multi-animal permit application for 13 dogs.
Chairman Sisney: Ok, the variance on the multi-animal; multi-animal 7...

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: | understand what you're saying Chairman. Normally we would request
variances from the code but the animal control ordinance doesn’t fall under a variance request; that’s
more for a planning and zoning or building development standpoint. So, what we’re requesting is that
she be allowed a multi-animal special use permit allowing her to have the 13 dogs.

Chairman Sisney: Ok. | make a motion that we approve Ms. Chavez request for a multi-animal permit of
13 dogs.

Chairman Sisney made a motion to recommend the Special Use Multi-Animal Permit to the City
Commission for final approval.

Vice-Chairman Buhler seconded the motion.

Motion carried unanimously.

b. Public Hearing/Discussion/Action — Summary Plat Amendment 702 N Foch Street, Assistant
City Manager Alvarez

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: Chairman, members of the board, applicant wishes to split the parcel at
702 Foch located in the R2 district. Parcel 1 is 90-foot-wide by 81 long. Parcel 2 is 59 wide by 90 long.



Standards for this district do require a minimum width of 60 foot. This amendment doesn’t have any
significant effect to alter any of our utilities, drainage, traffic; they’ll both have access to City maintained
street. Everything was submitted, they’re just off by the required 1 foot for them to split the parcel.
With that we can open the public hearing if there’s any proponents or opponents and the applicants are
here as well.

Gordon Edelheit: | have a picture of it, it's not even a foot, but the way the lot, it is a foot in the front
and it's got the 60 foot in the back. It’s off because of the way the corner, it’s a corner lot and it’s on the
corner of 7" and Foch and this is the back part of it. It has an alley it’s got plenty of access and the
utilities and it can only improve the neighborhood rather than it just be an empty lot right now.

Chairman Sisney: So, you want to split the lot for the...
Gordan Edelheit: It was 3 lots in there so it’s a lot and a half each.

Chairman Sisney: So, you're building a second house on that lot, how will they access that lot with an
automobile?

Gordan Edelheit: On 7" and on the alley. So, it’s both on the alley and on 7" Street.

Vice-Chairman Buhler: So, you're basically gonna separate (the board members were looking at a map of
the lots to get an understanding from the applicant).

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: So, one parcel would have direct access to Foch Street which is a City
maintained paved street and the other parcel would have direct access to 7" Street, which is also a City
maintained street.

Chairman Sisney: Well, | can see that there has been lots on Foch already divided. Does anyone on the
council have any questions?

Vice-Chairman Buhler: No

Chairman Sisney: | see no reason not approve it then.
I’'m make a motion to approve Mr. Edelheit’s request to divide that lot.

Chairman Sisney made a motion to recommend the Summary Plat Amendment to the City Commission
for final approval.

Member Alicea seconded the motion.

Motion carried unanimously.

c. Public Hearing/Discussion/Action — Summary Plat Amendment 1408/1410 Tin Street,
Assistant City Manager Alvarez

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: Chairman, member s of the board, the applicant wishes to combine
these parcels and it doesn’t affect any of our utility, drainage or traffic. Everything is submitted; all
applicable neighbors have been notified, and the applicant is here.

Martin Aguilar: My name is Martin Aguilar thank you for being here and seeing us. My sister and | are
gonna retire here so we’re trying to merge those two properties together and build an attachment to an
existing home that’s already right there.

Chairman Sisney: Ok, so you're combining the lots together so that the two families are gonna share a
lot?



Martin Aguilar: Right.
Chairman Sisney: Ok. So, is there any reason not to approve this?

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: | don’t have any concerns or issues. They meet all requirements for the
code and | am 100% for any future development, so if they want to add on...

Chairman Sisney: Does anyone on the board have any questions?
Vice-Chairman Buhler: No.

Chairman Sisney: I'll make a motion to approve Mr. Aguilar’s request to join those two lots. Can I get a
second?

Chairman Sisney made a motion to recommend the Summary Plat Amendment to the City Commission
for final approval.

Vice-Chairman Buhler seconded the motion.

Motion carried unanimously.

d. Public Hearing/Discussion/Action - Variance Request 1401 Platinum Street, Assistant City
Manager Alvarez

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: Chairman, members of the board, the variance request for this applicant
is due to the age of the mobile home. Per our municipal code that was updated in 2018, mobile home
units that are installed shall not be more than 20 years old at the time that they’re installed. Currently
the mobile home sits on a City lot however they are gonna have to move the mobile home from one lot
to another; so, once you, in essence, touch or change, you have to bring everything up to code. So, the
age of the mobile home doesn’t meet our requirements, however | did tell the applicant that they can
bring this to you and ultimately City Commission requesting a variance. They’'ve submitted the site plan,
they submitted a scope plan, you know, explaining why they need to move the mobile home. A site plan
for where it would be located in the future as well as pictures of the existing mobile home for
determination to see if it would be...some of our mobile homes aren’t in the best of conditions. With
that, the applicant is here and we can open public hearing if there’s anybody to speak.

Chairman Sisney: | have Christy Sallee.
Assistant City Manager Alvarez: The applicant.

Christy Sallee: My name is Christy Sallee and | am requesting a variance to move my mobile home
because it is over 20 years old. Right now, it sits on 175 W. 5™ which is an RV park and it’s a seniors only
RV park so they are...they let me move in originally, | signed a contract and almost immediately they had
decided that | needed to move my mobile home. | also have a baby, she’s 1 year old and it’s just me and
her. I've followed all the rules at the RV park but the thing is how it's a seniors only RV park, they’re
asking that I move it. It's been really difficult finding a location due to rules and regulations and | finally
found someone who is willing...it's a privately owned lot and that the 1401 Platinum. They’re willing to
allow me to move my mobile home there. | have also provided photos of my mobile home with the
application for this variance in hopes to see that it’s not an old looking mobile home, | mean, it's in good
shape for its age.

Chairman Sisney: I'd like to ask some quiestions. Is it a double wide?

Christy Salle: It's a single wide.



Chairman Sisney: And that lot that you're putting it on, you're not gonna own that lot?
Christy Sallee: | don’t own the lot, no.

Chairman Sisney: So, ok. Can | ask your relationship? You don’t have to answer that by the way? What's
your relationship to the property owner?

Christy Sallee: Just a good friend.

Chairman Sisney: Ok, so. You know you’re just opening yourself up to...I mean you’re gonna wind
up...the potential, same problem you have now; if you’re aware of that.

Christy Sallee: That I'll have to move it?

Chairman Sisney: That you’re setting your property on someone else’s lot and they can, | don’t know
what the laws are, but I'm just telling you that you need, | just want you to be aware that these people
did you wrong over here and you have more rights to deal with them you’re gonna have dealing with
this new person, just so you know.

Christy Sallee: Yes, that’s a good point and | understand that but | don’t have any other options. They're
making me move my mobile home or they’re gonna take it to court. | purchased this mobile home like
I'm renting to own it, and | signed a contract with a realtor before | was informed that It was a senior
citizens RV park and I'd have to move it. And in my contract with the realtor it says that | do not have to
move the mobile home but the contract of the RV park landlord is saying that | do. So, | don’t really have
any other option.

Chairman Sisney: Again, I'm gonna say something that’s not; I’m not a lawyer, this may be bad advice
but you got a good chance of winning your case against these people. You might want to do a little
research before you move your property is all 'm saying.

Member Alicea: Does the old trailer gave her misinformation for this?

Chairman Sisney: That's a legal case that she would be involved with, with the owners of the RV park
and I'm not an attorney so.

Vice-Chairman Buhler: How much time have they given you to move the trailer that you bought; the
trailer was there, right?

Christy Sallee: Yes.

Vice-Chairman Sallee: So, you bought it through a realtor. How much time have they given you to move?
Christy Sallee: They’ve given me, well, they had said that January 1* they were going to change the
name of the RV park and change certain rules | guess of this RV park stating that my mobile home being
there is a violation of their rules.

Member Alicea: Is it because you have a kid? Adult RV parks have no kids allowed.

Christy Sallee: They said it was only 3 years prior to me buying it, but | don’t know that. They just said
that that’s what their rules were, however | was not aware of that whenever | purchased the mobile

home because | wouldn’t have done that. | wouldn’t have planned on...it's hard to move a mobile home
and it's expensive and it’s just me and my baby so | just have to move it.



Chairman Sisney: Exactly, so, how far are you into this contract? How many payments have you made on
this house?

Christy Sallee: Since May.
Chairman Sisney: And you’ve got how many years to pay for it.
Christy Sallee: A lot. Either way it’s a contract and | can’t go back on it.

Member Alicea: At some point the real state had to know the little details in some way. It didn’t come
just after you bought it.

Chairman Sisney: Can | ask a question of the City Manager then? Now you got this piece of property that
she’s financing, she doesn’t own it, put it on someone else’s property that ... don’t know what to do
here. Do you have any suggestions?

City Manager Swingle: | think that you have...

Member Alicea: Like he's concerned that she goes through all this process in vain and she’ll have to
move this piece of property again.

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: She would have to come back before you guys again and at that point
you could make a decision to not allow it.

City Manager Swingle: Right, and as far as the legal advice, the legal advice that you've kind of submitted
to her that she probably should look at that and that should be the end of that conversation. It’s up to
her to do that. Who knows what will happen if you grant this transition in accepting an older trailer?

Vice-Chairman Buhler: Well, it sets a precedent. Would it set a precedent for us to allow that?

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: | think that in situations like this, that it’s really a case by case basis. You
have to look at the mobile home, the condition of the mobile home and the surrounding area as well.
The area that it’s going into and take each one into consideration as they come through. | don’t know
that it would set a precedence, | don’t know that | have too many of these that come through. | do have
occasional requests and | tell them all the same thing. She’s been the first one that wanted to go
through this whole process.

City Manager Swingle: | think the spirit of the regulation is, and this is unfortunate, it’s just 20 years,
we’re more concerned about the condition and the appearance of the trailer than anything, but it is 20
years; that’s the verbiage in the ordinance and what you have before you is a variance request.
Vice-Chairman Buhler: You know it’s too bad that the person didn’t come with you to support you,
putting your property that you're buying on their property. That would’ve been a good thing for us to
hear that they supported you and you know; it would’ve been a good thing.

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: Chairman, members of the board, there was a letter submitted to my
office on behalf of that property owner.

Vice-Chairman Buhler: Ok, well it would’ve been nice to have seen that letter.

Assistant City Manager Alvarez: | understand.



Vice-Chairman Buhler: Ok, well | make a motion that we approve you’re being bale to move the trailer.
You know, you're not in a great situation and your trailer looks nice; ! think it's in good shape and | hope
it will make the move.
City Manager Swingle: So, your motion is to approve the variance?
Vice-Chairman Buhler: Yes, yes, my motion is to approve the variance.
Vice-Chairman Buhler made a motion to recommend the Variance Request to the City Commission for
final approval.
Member Alicea seconded the motion.
Motion carried unanimously.
6. REPORTS FROM THE BOARD
Vice-Chairman Buhler would like the rules of procedure and conduct on the next agenda.
7. REPORTS FROM STAFF

Nothing to report at this time.

8. ADJOURNMENT
There being no further business at hand, Chairman Sisney made a motion to adjourn the
meeting.
Vice-Chairman Buhler seconded the motion.

Motion carried unanimously.

PASSED AND APPROVED ON THIS 13th DAY OF MARCH 2023.

/ )/’7 N

Chris Sisney, 2
Planning & Zoning Commission Chairman




TorC Citz Clerk

From: Diane <diane.tominaga@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, February 15, 2023 10:35 AM
To: TorC City Clerk; Traci Alvarez, ComputerScare@protonmail.com; Martin Mijal & Mary

Cavett; Martin Mijal & Mary Cavett; Lynn Gray; Robert woodworking;
sailmanh2o@gmail.com; Steve Dransfield

Subject: Request for formal hearing before the Planning and Zoning Commission RE the
proposed bridge and development on Wyona St

Good Morning City Clerk, City Zoning Authority, and Planning and Zoning Commission Members,

To be clear about the request I made yesterday, February 13, 2023, at the regular Planning and Zoning
Commission meeting for a formal public hearing before the Planning and Zoning Commission, it is our right by
code to have such a hearing. I mentioned Section 15-15 of the codes in my handout to be included in the P & Z
minutes, and which was given to each of the Planning and Zoning Commission members. [ did not elaborate on
the following, and would like to ensure that each member of the P & Z receives a copy of this email from the
City Clerk:

Sec. 15-5. Sec. 15-5.- Approvals required; three mile limit;

interpretations.
s

A.

Approval required to subdivide: No land within the City of Truth or Consequences or within three miles of
the City Limits of Truth or Consequences shall be subdivided into two or more lots or parcels or filed for
record, nor any street laid out, nor any improvements made to the land, until the final plat of the
subdivision or street improvements have been approved by action of the City Commission, unless the
subdivision fall under the provisions of section 15-15, alternate summary procedure. This approval must be
in writing and placed on the original reproducible tracing of the final plat according to the procedures
contained herein.

B.

Concurrent review of subdivisions within three miles of the City limits: The City and Sierra County shall have
concurrent review of any subdivision located outside the City and within three miles of the City limits and
not within the corporate limits of another municipality. Any such subdivision shall conform to the
requirements of this Code, and the regulations of Sierra County. Any person seeking the approval of a plat
within the platting jurisdiction of both the City and Sierra County shall secure an endorsement of approval
from both the City Commission and the Board of County Commissioners before the plat is filed in the office
of the County Clerk.

C.

Approval required to construct: No improvements, such as sidewalks, water supply, storm water drainage,
sewerage facilities, gas service, electric service or Iighting, or grading, paving, or 5urfaclng of streets, shall be
made within any proposed subdivision until the final plat for the subdivision, along with plans for
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improvements thereto have been formally reviewed and approved in accordance with the standards
contained herein.

D.

Interpretations: The City's Zoning Administrator shall have the right to make preliminary interpretations of
the meaning of this Code. Interpretations by the Zoning Administrator may be appealed to the Planning and
Zoning Commission, which may uphold, amend or reverse such interpretations. Interpretations by the
Planning and Zoning Commission may be appealed to the City Commission, which may uphold, amend or
reverse such interpretations. Interpretations by the City Commission may be appealed to a court having
legal jurisdiction over the matter being appealed. Any appeal must be filed with the office of the City Clerk
on or before 30 days following the date of the decision.

So the City's Zoning Administrator, Traci Alvarez, has made preliminary interpretations but | have
requested on behalf of all residents and owners of inhabited homes on the dead-end block of Wyona
St an appeal hearing before the Planning and Zoning Commission, which may UPHOLD OR AMEND OR
REVERSE SUCH INTERPRETATIONS. Those in turn go to a hearing at a City Commission hearing, and
THAT decision may be appealed within 30 days to a court, which will be done if necessary.

Email addresses for the City Commission Members are available online, whereas they are not for the
Planning and Zoning Commission members. This is why | am asking the City Clerk to forward this email to
those members, as | do not have their email addresses. | would like confirmation that this has been done.
Thank you,

Sincerely and respectfully,

Diane Gunning



REQUEST FOR PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING FINAL BUILDING PLANS for
Block 30 Palomas Subdivision #3022079415169 owned by Nathanael and Kacie
Stephens

Presented to the Planning and Zoning Commission at Regular Meeting
February 13, 2023
by Diane Gunning, 709 Wyona St, Truth or Consequences, NM

Dear Planning and Zoning Commission Members,

A preliminary plan for building a development of twenty four, 400 sq ft condos
has been submitted to the City Zoning office. The owner of the land plans to build
a bridge, at his own expense, at the end of our dead-end street as sole access to
this development. '

Traci Alvarez told me in her office as early as November 2019 that the
development had the full backing of the City and would definitely be allowed to
happen.

The only time Planning and Zoning has ever addressed this development was first
at a hearing April 7, 2022 to see whether Mr. Stephens, the land owner, would be
allowed a summary plat amendment to combine his 11 usable lots into 6 lots so
that he could build his condos. At this meeting Traci Alvarez assured the 3
commission members that the City Lawyer had looked over this proposal and it
was legal.

However, Rick Dumiak stood up and pointed out that the Codes (Sec 15-15)
clearly stated that for this to happen the land had to have (b) direct, legal and
unobstructed access to an existing City maintained street and (c) all lots to be
created have direct, unobstructed legal access to existing City water and
wastewater lines.

It was therefore deemed necessary to ask for a variance to the codes. The
Planning and Zoning commission later voted on the variance request, with only



one of the three members voting against it. On May 19, 2022 the City Commission
voted to pass the variance request.

Earlier in May every renter and owner of the four occupied dwellings on our
dead-end block requested and received a sit down meeting with Traci Alvarez and
the City Manager, Bruce Swingle. At this meeting we all voiced our objection to a
bridge which would increase traffic to such a huge extent and a development in
the midst of the drainage plain which could compromise it. We were told that a
land owner had the right to access his property, and that as long as he built to
code, he could build as he pleased.

The first time the preliminary plans for the development were made available to
me was in September 2022 and as of January 26 this year | was told by the City
Clerk they had not been changed.

These plans contain the following Code violations:

1. Apartments which are rented require a minimum of 400 sq ft, but a condo
which is owned requires a minimum of 450 sq ft. (Sec 11-14-2)

2. Multi-family dwellings of 3 or more require 1 % parking spaces per dwelling.
Building plan provides only 27 parking spaces and 36 are required by code.
Each of the 6 tracts can only accommodate 4 - 5 spots when 6 are needed.
(Sec 11-12-3) Dimensions of the land could not accommodate 36 spots at
each 9 feet wide (Sec 11-12-27)

3. Street extension and bridge width are 32 ft but code states they must be 36
ft (Sec 15-20 (A)10)

4. No provisions being made for garbage truck or emergency vehicle turn
around. The garbage truck used to turn around in one of the 16 vacant lots
across the street from us, but these have begun to be developed by Mark
Shipley into 8 single family dwellings so now the truck must back up all the
way out. It can access the waste receptacles on our side of the street but
would need to be able to turn around to access the twenty four planned
condos. To do this a turn around would make the street a cul-de-sac. The
minimum length of the street from the center of the cul-de-sac to the
nearest intersection by code is 500 ft. (Sec 15-20 (4)) The actual distance
would be well in excess of that.



There are probably more violations that a more savvy person could find.

Furthermore, the bridge plan itself is defective. All the other bridges over the City
drainage ditch which extends underneath Broadway, Austin, Marr and Van Patten
Streets are open under the bridges with cement sides for the drainage ditch to
flow through. This bridge plan calls for a bridge that dams the ditch entirely,
leaving only a 6 foot diameter drainage pipe for the water flow. During a flood the
water could surge against the dam which is the support of the bridge and
undermine it. When the bridge is complete, the City would take over
responsibility for it and would be liable for all property and life damages at that
point.

Ask yourself, as we have, who would be buying 400 sq ft homes, each with its own
hot spring tub? Likely it will be investors who will be AirBnb-ing them which will
turn our area into more of a commercial spot zone.

Under Section 15-14 there should be a Final Plat recommendation of approval
from the Planning and Zoning Commission.

Whatever hearing is to be held, we neighbors on this block need to be informed
and to be able to speak at the hearing. Traci Alvarez told us that only the closest
neighbor to the ditch, George Henson, has any rights to notifications or to
protest. However, in light of the fact that Mr. Stephens is paying for the bridge
and it is part of his development, we are all within 300 feet of the development
and demand our say.

Look carefully at ARTICLE I. -PURPOSE, AUTHORITY AND SCOPE OF THE
COMPTEHENSIVE PLANNING AND ZONING CODE

Sec 11-1-2 Purpose and intent

The purpose of this Code is to encourage the most appropriate use of land and to promote the health,
safety, morals and general welfare of the community through a comprehensive and planned approach.
The regulation, plans, and maps are deemed necessary to:

A. Prevent congestion in the streets and other rights-of-way;
B. Secure safety from fire, panic and other dangers;
C.. Promote health and general welfare;

3



D. Assure adequate light and air for all properties;

E. Prevent overcrowding of land and undue concentration of populations;

F.  Facllitate adequate provisions for transportation, water, sewer, schools,
parks and other public facilities and reduce the effect of natural hazards;

G. Control and abate the unlawful use of structures, buildings, or land;

H. Encourage the conservation of energy in the use of structures, buildings
and land in the City.

Please ask the City Clerk for these preliminary plans for land # #3022079415169
and look them over. You will need to view them on a computer so that they can
be scaled to see detail.

Thank you for your time and attention to this matter.

Sincerely,

Diane Gunning
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Other Bridges on streets over the drainage ditch
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Block 30 after it rains. The water from the hill behind drains into it.



CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

Agenda Item #: ‘E.4

MEETING DATE: March 22, 2023

SUBJECT: Take Home Vehicle Forms for Police Department
DEPARTMENT: City Clerk’s Office

DATE SUBMITTED: March 17, 2023

SUBMITTED BY: Angela A. Torres

WHO WILL PRESENT THE ITEM: Consent Calendar

Summary/Background:

In accordance with Resolution No. 12 21/22, all take-home vehicle requests must be approved by the City
Commission. The take-home vehicle requests are for Brandon Villarreal and Levi Eilers from the Truth or
Consequences Police Department.

Recommendation:

Approve take home vehicle form.

Attachments:

e Take-home vehicle form

Fiscal Impact (Finance): N/A

Legal Review (City Attorney): N/A

Approved For Submittal By: X Department Director
Reviewed by: [ City Clerk [ Finance [ Llegal [ Other: Click here to enter text.
Final Approval: [ City Manager

— —
m— ——

CITY CLERK'’S USE ONLY - COMMISSION ACTION TAKEN

Resolution No. -  Ordinance No. -
Continued To: - Referred To: -

(] Approved (] Denied [CJOother: -
File Name: CC Agendas 3-22-2023




Take Home Vehicle Authorization Request

Employee: B(&]doz\ y[HM{cgl Department:_ ] Of € P D

Position Title: P o) }c' ce. 0( c el Commute Miles/Day: G

Employee Address: IQS “bgﬂ ( ! las Ceuces A[[w Zﬁ’gnl

Pursuant to the Take-Home Vehicle Policy, requests to authorize take-home vehicles must
demonstrate an official need for a City vehicle beyond normal working hours. Identify which, if
any, of the following reflect the official need for the city vehicle beyond normal working hours.

Emergency Response: Employee has primary responsibility for responding to emergency
situations which require immediate response to protect life or property.

(O On-call Status:  Employee is on- call and responds to public safety or health emergencies
occurring after normal work hours and on weekends.

(O Other: explain

Note: A city owned take-home vehicle is a fringe benefit that may generate a tax liability.

By signing below, I acknowledge that I have read and understand the City policy governing
proper use of a take-home vehicle and prohibitions. By voluntarily participating in the take-
home vehicle program, I consent to complying with the policy, and I certify that this request
meets the requirements of the City’s Take-Home Vehicle Policy.

e 207 3/15/2033

Employee’s Signature Date

O Approved (O Denied

Department Director Signature

Commission QO Approved QO Denied

Amanda Forrister, Mayor Signature Date



Take Home Vehicle Authorization Request

Employee: ! e [Eilers Department: ’!"’ or [ ,D D
Position Title: 3/ A‘HO | M A Commute Miles/Day: __CL[__
Employee Address / ’%OO A/ 050 ﬁflﬂ (,/4 /&t) lr ACELS | Ay An

Pursuant to the Take-Home Vehicle Policy, requests to authorize take-home vehicles must
demonstrate an official need for a City vehicle beyond normal working hours. Identify which, if
any, of the following reflect the official need for the city vehicle beyond normal working hours.

Emergency Response: Employee has primary responsibility for responding to emergency
situations which require immediate response to protect life or property.

O On-call Status:  Employee is on- call and responds to public safety or health emergencies
occurring after normal work hours and on weekends.

QO Other: explain

Note: A city owned take-home vehicle is a fringe benefit that may generate a tax liability.

By signing below, I acknowledge that I have read and understand the City policy governing
proper use of a take-home vehicle and prohibitions. By voluntarily participating in the take-
home vehicle program, I consent to complying with the policy, and I certify that this request
meets the requirements of the City’s Take-Home Vehicle Policy.

e ———————

—= . #Top 05 /1 /7023

Employee’s Signature Date

O Approved (O Denied

Department Director Signature

Commission O Approved (O Denied

Amanda Forrister, Mayor Signature Date



CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES
AGENDA REQUEST FORM }lgenc{a Ttem #: F. 1

MEETING DATE: March 22, 2023

SUBJECT: Public Hearing and Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 747 an ordinance authorizing the lease of real
property, pursuant to section 3-54-1 NMSA 1978 to Sun State Tower.

DEPARTMENT: City Manager’s Office

DATE SUBMITTED: March 17, 2023

SUBMITTED BY: Tammy Gardner

WHO WILL PRESENT THE ITEM: Bruce Swingle

Summary/Background:

This is for a public hearing and final adoption of Ord. No. 747 for the lease of real property (Water Tank Site
on Pershing St., Truth or Consequences).

Recommendation:

Public Hearing and Final Adoption of Ord. NO. 747.

Attachments:

e Ordinance No. 747

Fiscal Impact (Finance): Yes

$175,000

Legal Review (City Attorney): Yes

Approved For Submittal By: XI Department Director
Reviewed by: [X City Clerk [ Finance Legal [ Other: Click here to enter text.
Final Approval: City Manager

— — ——

CITY CLERK'’S USE ONLY - COMMISSION ACTION TAKEN

Resolution No. Click here to enter text.  Ordinance No. 747

Continued To: Click here to.enter a date. Referred To: Click here to enter text.
L] Approved L] Denied [10ther: Click here to enter text.

File Name: CC agendas 3-22-2023




ORDINANCE NO. 747

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE LEASE OF REAL
PROPERTY, PURSUANT TO SECTION 3-54-1 NMSA 1978.

A. WHEREAS, the City of Truth or Consequences, New Mexico (the "City")
is a legally created, established, organized and existing incorporated municipality under
the constitution and laws of the State of New Mexico; and

B. WHEREAS, the City owns certain real property located within its
boundaries specifically described as follows:

A 230 acre tract of land in the NE Y, SE Y4 of Section 6, Township 14
South, Range 4 West, NMPM, commonly referred as “the Ballfield Site”.
The location is further summarized as being on Veater Street directly
south of and adjacent to the City ball fields, western part of Truth or
Consequences, Sierra County, New Mexico.

Please see attached as Exhibit 1 a legal description dated March 30, 2022
from Chaparral Surveying, LLC.

C. WHEREAS, the City has negotiated a Lease Agreement with Tower Point
Telecom (“Tenant™), whereby the City shall lease its interest in and to the above-
described property to the Tenant; and

D. WHEREAS, under Section 3-54-1 NMSA 1978, the City is required to
obtain an appraisal from a qualified appraiser of any property to be leased, and said

appraisal was prepared by Lee Morris of Morris Appraisal Services, Inc. dated August
25,2022; and

E. According to the aforesaid appraisal, the appraiser opined as follows:
“Therefore, by reason of my research of the current market, and by virtue of my
experience, I have formed the opinion that the market rent for the ground lease as stated
as of the effective date of this report was: FIFTEEN THOUSAND DOLLARS
($15,000.00) per year.

F. The contemplated rental is a one-time up front payment of $175,000.00 to
be paid at the inception of the Lease. The Lease shall ne for a 99 year term commencing
upon the effective date of this Ordinance.

G. The Lessee of the proposed agreement shall be Sun State Towers II1, a
Delaware Limited Liability Company. A copy of the following documents are attached
hereto as EXHIBITS A and B, and are incorporated into this Ordinance by reference.



1. Purchase and Sale Agreement.

2. Communications Facility Easement and Assignment of Tower-Related
Ground Lease.

H. The City Commission has determined that it is in the best interests of the
City to consummate the proposed transaction. Several of the reasons in support of
proceeding with the proposed transaction include the following:

1. As noted above, the proposed payment of $175,000.00 would be “up-
front” at the inception of the Lease.

2. Proceeding with the proposed transaction represents the best use of the
property. It would be otherwise difficult and costly to develop the property.

3. In the absence of entering into the proposed long term Lease Agreement, it
is very speculative if the property could be used as a cell tower site in the distant future.

4. Operating and maintaining the property in its current use has been a labor-
intensive endeavor the City. Entering into this proposed transaction would relieve the
City of a significant, time-consuming burden.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF
THE CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES, NEW MEXICO:

Section 1. Authority. The City is authorized to lease interests in real property
pursuant to the provisions of Section 3-54-1, N.M.S.A. (1978).

Section 2. Material Terms Lease Agreement.

A. The City shall lease the above-described property to the tenant in
accordance with the terms described in EXHIBITS A and B above.

B. The Tenant acknowledged that it is leasing the property in an “as
is” condition, and the City has made no warranties or representations regarding the Real
Property, the status of its title, or its feasibility for development.

Section 3. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be effective forty-five (45)
days after its adoption.

Section 4. Severability. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision shall be
held to be valid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section,
paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this
Ordinance.



PASSED, ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED THIS 22" DAY OF
MARCH, 2023.

CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES

By

Rolf Hechler, Mayor Pro-Tem

ATTEST:

By

Angela A. Torres, City Clerk
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CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES
AGENDA REQUEST FORM

Agenda Item #: G.1

MEETING DATE: March 22, 2023

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 35 22/23 Budget Adjustment Request
DEPARTMENT: Finance Department

DATE SUBMITTED: March 7, 2023

SUBMITTED BY:  Kerin Salcedo, Accounting Officer

WHO WILL PRESENT THE ITEM: Kristie Wilson, Finance Director

Summary/Background: Reconciling Budget Adjustments Requests (based on Chapter 6, Article 6 NM Statute)
needed for budget adjustments, increases, and decreases per attached.

Recommendation:

Approval Resolution No. 35 22/23 Budget Adjustment Requests for Fiscal Year 2022-2023

Attachments:
Resolution No 35 22/23
e Schedule of Budget Adjustments, Supporting Documentation

Fiscal Impact (Finance): Yes

Changes in funding as presented on the Department of Finance and Administration Schedule of Budget
Adjustments

Legal Review (City Attorney): N/A

Approved For Submittal By: X Department Director
Reviewed by: [X City Clerk [ Finance [JLlegal [ Other: Click here to enter text.
Final Approval: X City Manager

CITY CLERK’S USE ONLY - COMMISSION ACTION TAKEN

Resolution No. Ciick here to enter text.  Ordinance No. .
Continued To: . Referred To: .

(] Approved [ Denied C1Other: .

File Name: CC agendas 3-22-2023




RESOLUTION NO. 35 22/23

A RESOLUTION REQUESTING FINAL BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS IN THE REVENUE
AND EXPENDITURE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023.

WHEREAS, the final budget for was approved by the City Commission of the City of Truth or
Consequences, New Mexico, pursuant to Chapter 6, Article 76 NMSA 1978; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission in and for the City of Truth or Consequences, State of New
Mexico needs to adjust the current approved budget for Fiscal Year 2022-2023; and

WHEREAS, said budget was adjusted on the basis of need and through cooperation with all user
departments, elected officials and other department supervisors; and

WHEREAS, the official meeting for the review of said documents was duly advertised in
compliance with the State Open Meetings act; and

WHEREAS, it is the majority opinion of this Board that the adjusted budget meets the
requirements as currently determined.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Commission of the City of Truth or
Consequences, State of New Mexico hereby adopts the budget adjustment hereinabove described
and attached and respectfully requests approval from the Local Government Division of the
Department of Finance and Administration.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this 22nd day of March, 2023.

Amanda Forrister, Mayor

i

ATTEST:

Angela A. Torres, City Clerk-Treasurer



Department of Finance and Administration
Local Govemment Division
Financial Management Bureau
SCHEDULE OF BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS

For Local Government Division use only:

ENTITY NAME: City of Truth or Consequences
FISCAL YEAR: 2022-23 3/22/2023
DFA Resoluti 352223
BAR NUMBER 9
REVENUE, ADJUSTMENT. | ADJUSTMENT
EXPENDITURE, or | APPROVED | /INCREASE | / DECREASE ADJUSTED
DOCUMENT FUND ACCOUNT STRING ACCOUNT NAME {RANSFER (TO or FROM BUDGET BUDGET PURPOSE
NUMBER
Law
1 Enforcement 212-3001-32389 Local/State Grants Revenue $ - |$ 11250000 $ 112,500 |Recruitment & Retention Stipend Award
Recruitment
Law
1 Enforcement 212-3001-41261 Recruitment Stipend Expense $ - | $ 2000000 $ 20,000 [Recruitment & Retention Stipend Award
Recruitment
Law
1 Enforcement 212-3001-41262 Retention Stipend Expense $ -|$ 90,750.00 $ 80,750 |Recruitment & Retention Stipend Award
Recruitment
Law
1 Enforcement 212-3001-41210 FICA-MEDICARE Expense $ -|s 1.750.00 $ 1,750 |Recniitment & Retention Stipend Award
Recruitment
ATTEST:
Angela Torres, Clerk-Treasut (Date) Amanda Forrister, Mayor (Date)




DocuSign Envelope ID: FC1B631C-0F67-45C5-8639-258EAD514C06

MICHELLE LUJAN GRISHAM
GOVERNOR

DEBORAH K. ROMERO
CABINET SECRETARY

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION
LOCAL GOVERNMENT DIVISION
Bataan Memorial Building ¢ 407 Galisteo St. ¢ Suite 202 ¢ Santa Fe, NM 87501
PHONE (505) 827-4950 ¢ FAX (505) 827-4948

December 7, 2022

Luis Tavizon, Chief of Police

City of Truth or Consequences

505 Sims St.

Truth or Consequences, NM 87901-27726

Dear Chief Tavizon,

On behalf of the State of New Mexico, please accept this as your notice of award of funding from the
Law Enforcement Fund created by Gov. Michelle Lujan Grisham earlier this year. The purpose of the
funding is to cover the cost of hiring new officers and to retain existing staff. The amount allocated to
your entity is $112,500.00 the first year, 50% up to $112,500.00 the second year, and 25% up to
$56,250.00 the third year.

The methodology for determining your distribution is consistent with previous allocations sent out
earlier this year. However, it has been prorated based on available funding. Gov. Lujan Grisham will
prioritize obtaining additional funding for the Law Enforcement Fund during the upcoming legislative
session.

Initially disbursed funds must be expended by June 30, 2023; the second disbursement will be made in
July 2023 to be expended by June 30, 2024; and the last disbursement will be made in July 2024 to be
expended by June 30, 2025. Any amount not expended will be returned to the State of New Mexico,
Department of Finance and Administration in the year that it is scheduled for reversion. All
expenditures must occur prior to the reversion date.

A grant agreement will be issued between the State of New Mexico, Department of Finance and
Administration, Local Government Division, and your local entity. This agreement will further outline
the expenditure requirements and the distribution process.

Please contact Jeannette Gallegos at 505-827-4787 if you have any questions or concerns.
Thank you for the continued work of your agency to protect and serve the people of New Mexico.



DocuSign Envelope ID: FC1B631C-0F67-45C5-8639-2568EAD514C06

Respectfully,
DacuSigned by:
Deboral K Romtro

DCA2D2A1284C454

Deborah K. Romero
Cabinet Secretary
Department of Finance and Administration

CC: Amanda Forrister / Mayor



Law Enforcement

Recruitment and Retention Chart of Accounts

E T e = i . I R T ]
FUND sl Wit BRIV OGNS aag _|pEPARTMENT _ |OBJECT DESCRIPTION ~ |APPLICABLE TOENTITYTYPE
Revenue COA

|21200 Law Enforcement Recruitment |0001 No Department Needed [47120 State - Law Enforcement Appropriation |C & M County and Municipality
|Expenditures COA

21200 Law Enforcement Recruitment/Retention 3001 Law Enforcement 52010 FICA - Regular ALL Entity Types
21200 Law Enforcement Recruitment/Retention 3001 Law Enforcement 52011 FICA - Medicare. ALL Entity Types
21200 Law Enforcement Recruitment/Retention 3001 Law Enforcement 52020 Retirement ALL Entity Types
21200 Law Enforcement Recruitment/Retention 3001 Law Enforcement 52021 Retiree Heaith Care ALL Entity Types
21200 Law Enforcement Recruitment/Retention 3001 Law Enforcement 52030 Health and Medical Premiums ALL Entity Types
21200 Law Enforcement Recruitment/R ion 3001 Law Enforcement 52040 Life Insurance Premiums ALL Entity Types
21200 Law Enforcement Recruitment/Retention 3001 Law Enforcement 52050 Dental insurance Premiums ALL Entity Types
21200 Law Enforcement Recruitment/Retention 3001 Law Enforcement 52060 Vision Insurance Medical Premiums ALL Entity Types
21200 Law Enforcement Recruitment/Retention 3001 Law Enforcement 52070 Disability Insurance Premiums ALL Entity Types
21200 Law Enforcement Recruitment/Retention 3001 Law Enforcement 52080 Other Insurance Premiums ALL Entity Types
21200 Law Enforcement Recruitment/Retention 3001 Law Enforcement 52090 Unemployment Compensation ALL Entity Types
21200 Law Enforcement Recruitment/Retention 3001 Law Enforcement 52100 Workers' Comp ion Premium ALL Entity Types
21200 Law Enforcement Recruitment/Retention 3001 Law Enforcement 52110 Workers' Compensation Empioyer's Fee ALL Entity Types
21200 Law Enforcement Recruitment/Retention 3001 Law Enforcement 52999 Other Employee Benefits ALL Entity Types
21200 Law Enforcement Recruitment/Retention 3001 Law Enforcement 51020 Salaries - Full-Time Positions ALL Entity Types
21200 Law Enforcement Recruitment/Retention 3001 Law Enforcement 51070 Salaries - Terminal Leave ALL Entity Types
21200 Law Enforcement Recruitment/Retention 3001 Law Enforcement 51062 Retention Stipend ALL Entity Types
21200 Law Enforcement Recruitment/Retention 3001 Law Enforcement 51061 Recruitment Stipend ALL Entity Types
21200 Law Enforcement Recruitment/Retention 3001 Law Enforcement 53031 Recruitment travel ALL Entity Types
21200 Law Enforcement Recruitment/Retention 3001 Law Enforcement 53051 Recruitment Transportation Costs ALL Entity Types
21200 Law Enforcement Recruitment/Retention 3001 Law Enforcement 54041 Recruitment Supplies- Maintenance & Repair-Vehicles ALL Entity Types
21200 Law Enforcement Recruitment/Retention 3001 Law Enforcement 55031 Recruitment Contract Professional Services ALL Entity Types
21200 Law Enforcement Recruitment/Retention 3001 Law Enforcement 56011 Recruitment Software ALL Entity Types
21200 Law Enforcement Recruitment/Retention 3001 Law Enforcement 56021 Recruitment Supplies General Office ALL Entity Types
21200 Law Enforcement Recruitment/Retention 3001 Law Enforcement 57051 Recruitment Training ALL Entity Types
21200 Law Enforcement Recruitment/Retention 3001 Law Enforcement 57081 Recruitment Postage ALL Entity Types
21200 Law Enforcement Recruitment/R ion 3001 Law Enforcement 57091 Recruitment Printing/Publishing/Advertising ALL Entity Types
21200 Law Enforcement Recruitment/Retention 3001 Law Enforcement 57141 Recruitment Rent of Building ALL Entity Types
21200 Law Enforcement Recruitment/Retention 3001 Law Enforcement 57151 Recruitment Subscriptions & Dues ALL Entity Types
21200 Law Enforcement Recruitment/Retention 3001 Law Enforcement 57161 Recruitment Telecommunications ALL Entity Types
21200 Law Enforcement Recruitment/Retention 3001 Law Enforcement 58021 Recruitment Equip & Machinery ALL Entity Types
Transfers

21200 Law Enforcement Recruitment/Retention 0001 No Department Needed 61100 Transfers In ALL Entity Types
21200 Law Enforcement Recruitment/Retention 0001 No Department Needed 61200 Transfers Out ALL Entity Types
21200 Law Enforcement Recruitment/Retention 0001 No Department 21001 Payables ALL Entity Types
21200 Law Enforcement Recruitment/R ion 0001 No Department 12001 Receivables ALL Entity Types




DocuSign Envelope 1D: 6B8CCIDA-CEOE-4A98-9A47-8AFB799CC754

REIMBURSING AGENCY: Department of Finance and Administration

Business Unit: 341

RECIPIENT:

Truth or Consequences

APPROPRIATION NUMBER: ALLOCATION AMOUNT; REVERSION DATE:

22-2G1016-52 $281,250.00 June 30, 2023

ALLOCATION PURPOSE

Two Hundred Eighty One Thousand Two Hundred Fifty Dollars and Zero Cents over three years to be
utilized In accordance with the provisions of HB68, The first allocations will be disbursed at 100% within §
business days of acceptance of this agreement to include approval of the local governing body.

ALLOCATION DISBURSEMENT

The allocated funds will be disbursed 100% up to $112,500 the first year, 50% up to $1125,00 the second year, and
25% up to $56,250 the third year. The Allocation Recipient will submit to the Department of Finance &
Administration this signed document and evidence of approval of the local govering body. Disbursements of funds
will be made within 5 business days of reccipt of the signed agreement and evidence of approval of the local
governing body.

Funds for the first disbursement must be expended by June 30, 2023; the second 50% disbursement will be
made in July 2023 to be expended by June 30, 2024; and the last disbursement of 25% will be made in July
2024 to be expended by June 30, 2025, Any amount not expended in each of the three years will be returned
to the State of New Mexico, Department of Finance and Administration in the year that it fs scheduled for
reversion. All expenditures must occur prior to the reversion date.

The Allocation Recipient agrees to submit quarterly reports using Exhibit A, Law Enforcement Report, providing
updates on expenditures for the eligible activities defined in HB68.

CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that the Truth or Consequences

1. Will only use the allocated funds to carry out and/or perform activities described in allocation language.
2. Will follow t edure described.4 location Reporting” of allocated funds.
/ " / 23

- A /

Locgl nforcement Ag Date
TN Tia

Kul\"c?zed Local G(Mw Date”
APPROVAL

In accordance with the authority conferred on the Department of Finance & Administration by the statute
appropriating these funds, 1 hereby approve this certification for appropriation number 22-ZG1016-52 in
the amount JaigmQuy:

Runee Mard 1/17/2023

Local GovetnmeaeS# it Director Date




REIMBURSING AGENCY': Department of Finance and Administration

Business Unit: 341

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
Law Enforcement Fund
Report Form
Exhibit A

_Allocation Recipient:
' Appropriation Number:

Detail Expenditures of Eligible Activities per HB68: Recruitment and/or Retention |  Amount

Total Amount of Appropriation Funds Expended: /|

Narrative:
(Provide description of how remaining funds will be:utilized for. recruitment and/or. retention:)




Kerin Salcedo
— - e "]

From: Wilson, Kristie

Sent: Monday, March 06, 2023 4:19 PM

To: Swingle, Bruce; Traci Alvarez; Tavizon, Luis
Ce: Kerin Salcedo

Subject: Recruitment and Retention Stipend Structure

Good Afternoon Chief,
Below is the breakdown of stipends that | am proposing with the LERF funds, which includes the new certified and the 2
uncertified officers. This will include the Medicare taxes as well:

2022-2023
Date 31212023
23-24 52010 52011
OBJECT NEW FICA MEDICARE
DESCRIPTION CODE COMP. TAX TAX
8.20% 1.45%

$ _

Tavizon, Luis Chief 51020 $ 8,500 $ 123
$ -

Jeffers, Shane 51020 $ 8,500 $ 123
Blomquist, Jaffee $ -

Sergeant 51020 $ 8,500 $ 123
$ N

Madden, Martin 51020 $ 5,750 $ 83
$ _

Frazier, Kaci 51020 $ 8,500 $ 123
$ -

Gonzalez, Shantell 51020 $ 8,500 $ 123
$ N

Marin, Rafael 51020 $ 8,500 $ 123
3 R

Ontiveros, Ted 51020 $ 8,500 $ 123
3 -

Vega, Jude Mike 51020 $ 8,500 $ 123
$ N

Venable, Donald 51020 $ 8,500 $ 123
$ N

Prieto, Joseph 51020 $ 8,500 $ 123
$ -

Cenified 51020 $ 8,500 $ 123
$ .

VACANT 51020 $ 5,750 $ 83
$ N

VACANT 51020 $ 5,750 $ 83
$ .

TOTAL $ 110,750 $ 1,606

$ 112,356




CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES

AGENDA REQUEST FORM
Agenda Item #: gZ

MEETING DATE: March 22, 2023

SUBJECT: Amendment to Park User Fees, Resolution 68 21/22, adding the use of the concession stand
located at the Louis Armijo Sports Complex.

DEPARTMENT: Parks

DATE SUBMITTED: March 16, 2023

SUBMITTED BY: 0O.J. Hechler

WHO WILL PRESENT THE ITEM: O.J. Hechler, Community Services Director

Summary/Background:

The purpose of this resolution amendment is to add the use of the concession stand located at the Louis
Armijo Sports Complex. We also want to include the language in to the rental agreement that rentals of
bleachers, chairs, and tables will be per event, and not to exceed four days.

Recommendation:
Approval to amend Resolution 68 21/22

Attachments:
e Resolution No. 68 21/22

Fiscal Impact (Finance): N/A

$0.00

Legal Review (City Attorney): N/A

Click here to enter text.

Approved For Submittal By: [] Department Director
Reviewed by: [ City Clerk [1Finance [ Llegal [ Other: Click here to enter text.
Final Approval: [ City Manager

-

—-—c:

CITY CLERK’S USE ONLY - COMMISSION ACTION TAKEN

Resolution No. 68 21/22  Ordinance No. -
Continued To: - Referred To: -

] Approved (] Denied [Iother: -
File Name: CC Agendas 3-22-2023




RESOLUTION NO. 68 21/22

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES CITY COMMISSION ADOPTING A
RESOLUTION FOR FEES, DEPOSITS AND REGULATIONS FOR USE OF THE CITY PARKS.

WHEREAS, the City of Truth or Consequences operates and maintains various City Parks, Rodeo
Arena, Sports Complex, Tennis Courts, etc., and;

WHEREAS, the City of Truth or Consequences operates and maintains the City Parks for the
enjoyment of the public, and;

WHEREAS, the City Parks are sometimes used by the public for commercial or private purposes,
and;

WHEREAS, the City of Truth or Consequences finds it necessary to collect fees, and deposits in
order to cover operational costs, and to provide on-going maintenance of the City Parks:

The following are the fees and deposits the City will charge for use of the City Parks:

Those who wish to use a park on a first come, first serve basis are not required to pay a user
fee. However, private and commercial events that are expected to bring in a large number of
people will be required to pay user fees.

RALPH EDWARDS PARK:

Reserving a Park Shelter: Small Shelter - up to 2 hours: $20.00
(Utilities Not included) 2 hours to 4 hours: $30.00

4 hours to all day $40.00

(Refundable Deposit) per rental: $25.00

Large Shelter: up to 2 hours: $25.00

2 hours to 4 hours: $35.00

4 hours to all day: $45.00

(Refundable Deposit) per rental: $25.00

Reserving Gazebo: Up to 4 hours: $30.00
(Utilities not included) 4 hours to 8 hours: $50.00
(Refundable Deposit) per rental: $25.00

Use of Utilities: Electricity: $7 per outlet per day
' $50 per day south pedestals
Water Fees: $10 single hose bib per day
$25 per event (Multiple hose bibs)
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Commercial Event Application: Event Reservation: $50.00
Electricity: $50.00 per event
Water Fees: $10.00 per hose bib per day
(Refundable Deposit) per reservation: $100.00
Does not include group shelters or Gazebo

e Set-up and tear-down will be the responsibility of the renter.
o JUMPING BALLOONS ARE NOT PERMITTED AT RALPH EDWARDS PARK.

FAMILY PARK:
Reserving a Park Shelter: Small Shelter - up to 2 hours: $20.00
(Utilities not included) 2 hours to 4 hours: $30.00

4 hours to all day $40.00

(Refundable Deposit) per rental: $25.00

Large Shelter - up to 2 hours: $25.00

2 hours to 4 hours: $35.00

4 hours to all day $45.00

(Refundable Deposit) per rental: $25.00
Use of Utilities: Electricity: $7 per outlet per day
Commercial Event Application: Event Reservation: $50.00

Electricity: $35.00 per event
(Refundable Deposit) per reservation: $100.00
Does not include group shelters

e Set-up and tear-down will be the responsibility of the renter.

e Jumping balloons for commercial use require a Commercial Event Application, Business
License, and proof of Liability Insurance.

HEALING WATERS PLAZA:
Reserving the Pergola: Up to 2 hours: $25.00
(Utilities not included) 2 hours to 4 hours: $35.00

4 hours to all day: $45.00

Deposit (Non-Commercial Events)  Refundable Deposit fee Per Rental: $25.00

Use of Utilities: Electricity: $7 per outlet per day

Page 2 of 7



Commercial Event Application: Event Reservation: $50.00 (Does not include pergola)
Electricity: $50.00 per event
(Refundable Deposit) per reservation: $100.00

e Set-up and tear-down will be the responsibility of the renter.

EVELYN RENFRO PARK:

USE OF UTILITIES: Electricity: $7 per outlet per day
Water Fees: $10 single hose bib per day

LOUIS ARMIJO SPORTS COMPLEX :

Use of Field Lights: $25.00 per day
Men/Women Sports Leagues: $150.00 per team per season (includes Field Lights)
Youth League Teams: $100.00 per team per season (includes Field Lights)
Guest Tournaments (Men/Women): $200.00 (Up to 3 consecutive days)
Refundable Deposit: $50.00 per event
Use of Conference Room: $15.00 per hour up to 3 hours
$50.00 over 3 hours
(Refundable Deposit) per rental $25.00
Use of Concession Stand: $15.00 per hour up to 3 hours
$50.00 over 3 hours
$100.00 per season

(Refundable Deposit) per rental $50.00

e Adult Sports Leagues must submit By-Laws with application for season use.
e Aseason being: spring, summer, fall, winter (3-4 Months).

e All leagues must provide a season schedule at the time event is booked.

e Set-up and tear-down will be the responsibility of the renter.

ROTARY PARK:
Reserving a Park Shelter: Small Shelter - up to 2 hours: $20.00

2 hours to 4 hours: $30.00
4 hours to all day $40.00
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(Refundable Deposit) per rental: $25.00

Large Shelter - up to 2 hours: $25.00

2 hours to 4 hours: $35.00

4 hours to all day $45.00

(Refundable Deposit) per rental: $25.00

Use of Utilities: Electricity: $7 per outlet per day

Commercial Event Application: Event Reservation: $50.00
Electricity: $35.00 per event
(Refundable Deposit) per reservation: $100.00
Does not include group shelters

e Set-up and tear-down will be the responsibility of the renter.

TENNIS COURTS:
Use of tennis court lights: $10.00 per use (no later than 11 PM)

Reserving the tennis courts: two court enclosure- $20.00 per day
(Refundable Deposit) per rental: $25.00

RODEO ARENA:
Use of Arena Lights: $25.00 per day
Use of Arena: $100 per event
$40 Local Youth Group
Refundable Deposit $100.00 per event
PA System: $25.00 per day (if available)
Additional Tractor Work: $100.00 per day
Overnight use of stalls: $10 per stall per night + $25 single fee deposit
RV Hookup: $20 per RV Hookup per day (electricity and water)

Liability Insurance Certificate: Renters may be required to submit a Certificate of Liability
Insurance naming the City of Truth or Consequences as additional insured for a minimum of
$1,000,000 Per Occurrence. A Hold Harmless Agreement is required to be signed by all
applicants.
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Additional Items:

Bleachers: $50.00 per set (includes delivery)
Folding Chairs: $1.00 per chair
Tables: $5.00 per table

(Refundable Deposit) per rental $50.00
e Rentals of bleachers, chairs, and tables will be per event not to exceed four days.
(The location of the event will be noted on the Rental Agreement Form)
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A Commercial Event Application: is for the use of a portion of a park for events that are
expected to draw a large number of people due to their nature, interest, location, promotion,
or any combination of similar influences that are to be held in a City Park. This includes but not
necessarily limited to vendors, festivals, solicitations, or performances. Vendors selling goods
on public property must have a City business license. All Commercial Event Applications must
be approved by the City Manager.

The cleaning/damage deposit will be deposited in a City account, and will be refunded if the
facility is cleaned after the event and the facility has been returned to prior condition to the
satisfaction of the City. If the amount of deposit is greater than the cost of cleaning or damage,
the difference will be refunded. If the cost of cleaning or damage is greater than the amount of
deposit the renter will be charged accordingly.

Note: The City Manager or his/her designee may impose other use regulations as he/she may
deem necessary as long as those regulations do not subvert the intent of this policy. Any
complaints for public affray may affect your ability to use City Parks.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City of Truth or Consequences Governing Body, that
the fees, deposits and regulations described herein are hereby enacted.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that nothing in the Resolution shall prohibit the use or access of City
Parks by the public at large for free.

PASSED, APPROVED AND AMENDED this 16" day of October, 2022.

CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES, NEW MEXICO

By:

Amanda Forrister, Mayor

ATTEST:

Angela A. Torres, City Clerk-Treasurer
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CITY OF TRUTH OR CONSEQUENCES

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

Agenda Item #: H. 1

MEETING DATE: March 22, 2023

SUBJECT: Approval of the Turtleback Trails Master Plan.
DEPARTMENT: N/A

DATE SUBMITTED: March 17, 2023

SUBMITTED BY: John Masterson

WHO WILL PRESENT THE ITEM: Attila Bality, Jornada RC&D

Summary/Background:

Attila Bality, Jornada RC&D will present the Turtleback Trails Network Plan and request approval from the
governing body.

Recommendation:

Attachments:

e Turtleback Trails Network Plan.
e Letters of support

Fiscal Impact (Finance): N/A

Legal Review (City Attorney): N/A

None.

Approved For Submittal By: [] Department Director
Reviewed by: [X City Clerk [ Finance [JLegal [ Other: Click here to enter text.
Final Approval: City Manager
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CITY CLERK’S USE ONLY - COMMISSION ACTION TAKEN

Resolution No.-  Ordinance No. -
Continued To: - Referred To: -

[ Approved [ Denied Cother: -
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Turtleback Trails
Network Plan

Prepared for the City of Truth or Consequences
and the Village of Williamsburg
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| Executive Summary

The Turtieback Trails Network Master Plan provides a vision for severat

proposed recreation and conservation projects centered around the Rio
Grande in Sierra County. New Mexico. The Master Plan assesses the potential
benefits to the community, addresses community concerns, and sets out

a framework for developing the project components

The Master Plan is intended to become a tool for city and county officials
along with partnering community groups to use in order to coordinate trail
development and associated infrastructure, to improve opportunities for
outdoor recreation and exercise for residents and tourists in Sierra County.

Major components of the Master Plan include.
« Designations of trails on BLM land on the south/east
side of the Rio Grande
+ Construction of footbridges to enable river crossing
- Construction of a pedestrian trail between Williamsburg
and Truth or Consequences on the South side of the Rio Grande
- Enhancements to river put-in/take-out sites and signage along
the river to direct floaters
+ Restosation/conservation of the wetlands in Rotary Park

The Turtleback Trails Network Master Plan includes the following
components’

Chapter 1: C ity Vision Stat t shares how the ptan will have
a positive impact on recreation. health, economic development and tourism.
conservation and education. and stewardship in the community.

Chapter 2: The Background chapter explores how outdoor recreation

% enhancements can promote tourism and increase local tax revenues
The chapter also shares excerpts from a number of existing local and state
recreation plans. including the New Mexico State Comprehensive Outdoor




Recreation Plan. the City of Truth or Consequences Comprehensive Plan, and the Rio
Grande Trail Master Plan. that relate to and support the implementation of the proposed
projects in this Master Plan Finally. the chapter gives an overview of community
demographics. a health needs assessment. and statistics on residents’ access to parks.
making the case that enhanced recreation amenities will benefit the health of many
community members.

Chapter 3: Community Engagement summarizes the efforts undertaken by the
Steering Committee to gather community feedback in developing this plan. Multiple
outreach projects solicited input from individual citizens as well as from a number

of local groups. including the City of Truth or Consequences, the Village of Williamsburg.

Sierra Vista Hospital. several groups at Hot Springs High School. and numerous other
tocal organizations

Chapter 4: Visltor Safety addresses the need to provide a safe experience for users
of this trail system. The chapter summarizes ways to mitigate safety risks and offers
recommendations for ordinances. signage, and emergency operations plans

Chapter 5: The Physical Projects gives detailed recommendations for each of the
proposed projects that make up this trail system.

Part 1 addresses the proposed Rio Grande Paddle Trail Existing conditions are
summarized. and recommendations given for enhancements o improve user
cxperience. including designating unloading and parking areas. building boat launch
ramps and slairs. providing restroom and trash facilities. installing signage and maps
at launch sites. and providing signage along the river to inform paddlers/tubars

of obstacles and approaching take-outs. The chapler includes maps of each launch
site with suggested tayouts and examples of signage. and an appendi» gives details
on possible ramp designs.

Part 2 addresses establishing a trait system on the east/south side of the Rio
Grande. made accessible by several pedestrian btidges {with proposals given
for bridge locations and design). A map is provided with current trail use data
from local runners and bikers. This trail system would include a portion of the
statewide Rio Grande Trail. Recommendations for the construction of a new
riverside trail from Williamsburg to Truth or Consequences are also given

Part 3 of this chapler focuses on a redesign of Rotary Park 1o improve visior
expericnces and restere ils wetland ecosystem,

Chapter 6: River Corridor Conservation and Education summarizes the history

of this stretch of the Rio Grande. including both the natural resources and cultural
heritage of the area. It addresses chalienges to conlinued conservation, inctuding
removing invasive plant species and restoring native habitat The chapter identifies
conservation concerns in the estabtishment of the lrail system. It proposes interpretive
signage to educate users on a variety of natural history themes. and offers recommen-
dations for conservation-focused youth and community events

Chapter 7: M; and St ip addresses the need for
ongoing maintenance of the trail system. and offers suggestions of ways to solicit
community help in maintaining the system through trail/site adoptions and user fees
The chapter proposes a breakdown of which agency or entity would be in charge

of maintaining each component of the trail system.

Chapter 8: Federal Coordination offers guidance on the process of seeking approval
from federal agencies. which witl be required as some of the proposed project areas fall
under jutisdiction of the Bureau of Reclamation. Army Corps of Engineers. and Burcau
of Land Management. Permitling from these agencies will require comptiance with the
Nationat Environmental Policy Act and the Clean Water Act
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Throughout the document, look for the following icons:
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01 community Vision Statement

Pedestrian bridges. trails. and river access improvements along the Rio Grande
in Truth or Consequences and Williamsburg provide access to the natural envi-
ronment that helps our community grow healthier and wealthier

This plan will have a positive impact in the following aspects of life in this

o B ="

community:

Recreation: Our community benefits from amenities that increase access

to and safety of our public lands near the Rio Grande The project will provide
outstanding outdoor recreation for alt our community members, including
those who cannot afford destination recreation opportunities

Health: Our community grows healthier through new opportunities for physical
activities and Llhe mental bencfits of getting outdoors in the natural environment

E ic Develop & ism: Our community grows wealthier through
the additional tourism dollars spent and associated gross receipts and Lodger's
tax collected

Conservation & Education: Our Rio Grande is healthier with enhanced wetlands
and improved native habitats that support wildlife and fisheries while serving
as an important outdoor classroom for everyone.

Stewardship: Our community. inspired by better access to the Rio Grande,

readily partners with the City, Village and public land managers on projects
that improve access. maintain trails and river access sites. and monitor trail
and resource conditions




02 Background

Recreation and Tourism

Over the past decade, as the traveling public has trended toward a younger
demographic. tourism has seen a shift away from the “sight-seeing” mentality
of past gencrations to “sight-doing” According to the U.S. Bureau of Economic
Analysis, New Mexico's outdoor economy contributed $2 4 billion {2 2 percent)
to the state’s GOP in 2019 The industry employed 35,065 New Mexicans,

with $1 2 billion in income. This growth in experiential tourism provides Sierra
County with an opportunity to capitalize on this trend by developing its outdoor
recreation offerings. As more and more tourists take outdoor recreation
opportunities into consideration when choosing where to travel. the value

of tourism in trail development is clear and compelling

Not only will trail development attract new visitors to Sierra County, it wilt
also provide those who already visit regularty with yet another amenity to
experience. thereby potentiatly increasing the length of their visit Increasing
visitor stays will result not only in additional revenues for our tourism related
businesses, but will also increase tax revenues that may be used to develop
future recreation projects that will benefit residents and visitors alike. Additional-
ly. the opportunity exists to organize more outdoor recreation events (such
as mountain biking/trail running races and group hikes) that will bring a more
active demographic to our communities. The target market for these events
trends younger and more active. Not only will these events result in "heads

in beds " increasing tourism revenues. but may also result in some of these
participants finding Sierra County an attractive place to live and work.




Relevant Local/State Plans

Development of the Turtieback Trails Network supports several adopted
state, regional and local planning documents. These include the State
Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan (SCORP), regional economic and
tourism plans. and T or C's Comprehensive Plan, all of which address outdoor
recreation. community health and quality of life, and tourism. Excerpls from
these plans are listed below.

New Mexico State Comprehensive Outdoor R: tion Plan (SCORP)
Home | Get Outside, New Mexico | Outdoor Recreation Plan
{getoutsidenm.org)

The 2022-2026 SCORP. completed in December 2021. provides guidance for
the allocation of Land and Water Conservation Fund (LWCF) program funding
Many of the goals. objectives and strategies identified in the SCORP align with
the Turtieback Trails Network. Relevant goals include:

+ Encourage development in the outdoor recreation economy that supports
the health and wellbeing of New Mexicans

+ Connect communities with outdoor recreation resources to grow local
tourism economies
Identify and protect privatety-owned, critically important lands at greatest
risk for development through acquisition or conservation easements from
willing landowners. Determine if additional legislative action to permanently
protect them from development is required

+ Develop projects and programs that promote greater recreational and
ecologicat conneclivity

In the Southwest region (including Sierra County) the SCORP identified trails

& trailheads as the most important outdoor recreation facility to survey respon-
dents. Hiking. trail running, camping and backpacking are the most common
outdoor recreation aclivities. and more people would participate in biking.
hiking and camping if high quality facilities were available.

Comprehensive Plan Update for Sierra County, NM 2017
sierra-county-comprehensive-plan-2017.pdf (si .0rg)

Tourism and recreation hold the greatest potential for continued growth in Sierra
County and the county should showcase tourism opportunilies and experiences
to visitors and potential new residents The markeling of facilities. services. and
events must be coordinated and aggressive. (pg 2)

City of Truth or Consequences Comprehensive Plan. 2014
Final Comprehensive Plan - October 2014 pdf {revize.com)

The following excerpts from this plan are directly supported by the goals of the
Turtieback Trails Network:

Achieve a sound and batanced local economy which supports existing businesses,
attracts new investment. increases the tax base, creates employment opportunities.
and generates public revenues.

«  Create and maintain recreational opportunities for residents of all ages.
Increase access to recreational activities on and along the Rio Grande. including
rafting. kayaking, canoeing and fishing
Work with the Bureau of Reclamation to determine the feasibility of installing
access ramps for rafting, canoeing. and kayaking on the Rio Grande from Ralph
Edwards Park and Rotary Park.



City of Truth or Con sequences Riverfront 2. What activities would you participate in along the Rio Grande, if available?
Economic Feasibility Study, 2021

@ !lking 206

In 2021. the City of Truth or Consequences contracted with engineering firm ® "Snms 146
. . ) ) " ® Kayaking N

Wilson & Company to examine the community’s economic opportunities along 33

@ River Floating/ Tubing

the riverfront. The firm conducted a public survey to which over 300 residents @ Horseback Riding 186

responded. The results indicate strong support for pedestrian bridges and trails @ Outdoor Sports 67
@® Camping 40
@ Farmer's Markets 72

1. Which of the following changes would you like to see along the Rio Grande? @ 1ood Trucks 126
@ Small-scale restautants 113

@ Bike/pedestnan paths . 213 @ Shopping 109

@ Crossings to the South Side 184 ® would not participate gg

@ ADA Compliant loading 103 @ Other

@ Camping/Camp grounds 70

© Addttional Parking

© wayfinding and cducational 70

@ Smali-scale restaurants 96

@ Outdoor recreation equipment 100

@ Conservation with limited river 90

® Nochanges 91

® Other 14 250

23

200

250 -
150

200

100
150

50
100
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3. Doyou believe a bridge ing to the South side of the
Rio Grade Is important?

@ ves 143
®No 462
4. Do you beli a pedestrian bridge ing to the South side of the Rio

Grande is important?

@ ves 231
@ No 71

Rio Grande Trall Master Plan
RioGrandTrail_MasterPlan_FINALwChanges pdf (nm.gov)

The Rio Grande Trait (RGT) is New Mexico's cross-state. recreational trail for
hiking. biking, and horseback riding along the Rio Grande. The Rio Grande Trail
willimprove public access to the Rio Grande. which will increase the connection
New Mexicans have to the river and cultivate river stewardship The following
excerpts from the Rio Grande Trail Master Plan highlight some potential areas

of coordination with the Turtieback Trails Network:

+  Establish the Rio Grande Trail as the conduit connecting communities, local
and state destinations, and geographies. as well as promoting heaith. quality
of life. and economic vitality in New Mexico

+ The Rio Grande Trail non-profit should establish a Gateway Communities
program to connect trail users with towns along the route for food. todging.
cultural amenities, or additional recreation aclivities Program implementa-
tion will foster strong relationships with local municipalities and provide
resources for developing connector trails from communities to the Rio
Grande Trail.

+ The Rio Grande Trait non-profit shoutd develop a trail sponsor program and
Adopt-a-Trail program. The non-profit's Adopt-a-Trail program should draw
from and work in tandem with the EMNRD State Parks Divisicn's volunteer
program and provide guidance for how the Rio Grande Trail program could
work with tocal jurisdictions

The proposed route of the Rio Grande Trail runs along the east/south side
of the river between NM 51 and Williamsburg. and could be incorporated
into the Turtleback Trails Network. Additionally, construction of footbridges
(see Chapter 5: Physical Projects) would connect RGT users with commercial
amenities in Truth or Consequences



Middle Rio de E ic Devel Plan 2016
New Mexico (mrgeda.com)

Goal improve the economy and quality of life of the region via Arls, Recreation
and Visitors Industries. This cluster holds opportunities for significant growth in
our region. Cities. counties. chambers of commerce, and recreation and tourism
businesses can easily collaborate on regional resource and skill devetopment.
The growth of visitor, recreation and tousism industries will provide jobs and
revenue opportunities for the region. The synergetic effect of this collaboration
allows the region to leverage existing resources for exponential growth.

+ Increase recreational opportunities for tourists.
« Increase visitors in the region by 5% over the next § years

Community Profile

Population

According to the 2020 Census, the total population of Truth or Consequences
is 6.052. which is a decrease of around 400 since 2010. The median age is 515
years 82.5% of the poputation is over 18 years and 2g 5% of the people are 65
years and over. Source. Census - Geography Profile

Income and Poverty

The median household income in Truth or Consequences is $23.998. compared
to $51.945 for the state of New Mexico. 33 4% of lhe residents in T or C are living
in poverty,

Source: Census - Geography Profile

The economy of Truth or Consequences employs 1.960 people. The largest
industries in T or C are Health Care & Social Assistance (577 people). Retail
Trade (211 people). and Construction (184 people). and the highest paying in-
dustries are within the local government sector including: Public Administration
($54.750). Administrative & Support & Waste Management Services ($43.611).

and Professional. Scientific. & Management. & Administrative & Waste Management Services
($42.0917).

. Truth or C q es. NM | Data USA

Community Health

26.9% of the population in Truth or Consequences has identified as disabled. compared
to 16% of the overall NM population.

Sierra County ranks in the lower third of NM counties in the percentage of adults who

meet the recommended physical activity guidelines, with only 49 4% of adults achieving

this benchmark. Physical activity among aduits has numerous benetfits, including reducing
risk of heart disease, stroke, and some cancers: improving physical fitness, bone health,
and mental health; preventing high blood pressure. abnormat cholesterol, prediabetes and
diabetes: maintaining a healthy weight. and increasing mobility; brain health benefils. includ-
ing improved cognitive function. reduced anxiety and depression risk, and improved sleep
and quality of life. Among older adults. physical activity is crucial in preventing falls. Only half
of adults in the US meet physical activity recommendations. Research demonstrates any
amount of physical activity is beneficial: however. for substantial health benefits. the Physical
Activity Guidelines for Americans, 2nd edition recommends adults do 150 to 300 minutes
a week of moderate-intensity physical activity. or 75 to 150 minutes a week of vigorous-in-
tensity physical activity Preferably. aerobic activity should be spread throughout tHe week.

Source: Welcome to NM-IBIS - New Mexico’s Public Health Data Resource (state.nm.us)
Community Health Needs Assessment

Sierra Vista Hospital (' SVH" or ‘the Hospital') has performed a Community Health Needs
Assessment (CHNA) to determine the health needs of the local community. Data were
gathered from multiple well-respected secondary sources to build an accurate picture

of the current community and its health needs. A survey of a select group of Local Experts
was performed to review the prior CHNA and provide feedback, and to ascertain whether
the previously identified needs are still a priority.



The 2020 Significant Health Needs identified for Sierra County include.

Mental Health/Suicide
Drug/Substance Abuse
Affordability/Accessibility
Alcohol Abuse

Obesity

Chronic Pain Management

N OO AW N =

. Cancer

Within Sierra County 34 2% of the population is identified as morbidly obese. 18 4% are
affected by chronic diabetes and 517% of the poputation fail to meet vigorous exercise
recommendations.

Lower income groups. older adults. and residents of rural areas have been identified by
Sierra Vista Hospital Local Expert Advisors as priority populations Unique and pressing
needs of these groups include access to affordable healthcare/transportation and
behavioral health issues.

Findings from the community health needs assessment lead to the development of
a detailed implementation strategy plan.

The goal for Chronic Disease Management is: Promote healthy lifestyles through education
and outreach. Relevant implementation strategies for trails include: Exploration of addition-
al community programming such as heaith fairs and screenings to promote prevention and
carly detection of chronic diseases,

Access to Parks & Trails

According to a report from the National Recreation & Park Association, adults living within a
hatf mile of a park spend more time visiting parks and exercising. Access to trails provides a
potential opportunity for increased physical activity. Any increase in physical activity can tead
to medical cost savings. The annual individual medical cost of inactivity {$622) is more than
two and a half times the annual cost per user of bike and pedestrian trails ($235) Source:
Wang. G. et al "Cost analysis of the built environment The case of bike and pedestrian trails
in Lincoln, Neb.” American Journal of Public Health 94, no. 4 (2004) §49- 553. Increased

physical activity and easier access to nature atong the river and the foothills
can help address obesity and mental health issues challenging our community

Park Serve Database/10 Minute Walk

The Trust for Public Land has built a comprehensive database (called “Park Serve’)
of local parks in nearly 14.000 cities, towns, and communities. The database uses

a 10 Minute Walk™ concept to identify residentiat arcas that are/are not within a

10 minute walk of a park. The analysis identifics physicat barriers such as highways.
train tracks. and rivers without bridges. and chooses routes without barriers

to access the parks. Using these 10-minute walk service areas, overall access
statistics were generated for each park, place, and urban area included in the
database. and then further disaggregated by several demographic variables -
race/ethnicity, age, and income

As reported by the Park Serve database. about 40% of residents in Truth or
Consequences live within a 10 minute walk of a park The database also uses
a set of metrics to identify areas of highest priority for park construction

Detailed information, maps. and graphics are available at Truth or Consequences.
New Mexico | Trust for Public Land (tplL.org)



03 Community Engagement

A foundation of the Turtieback Trails Network planning effort has been to engage
community members as much as possible to hear their ideas and concerns about
outdoor recreation opportunities along the Rio Grande corridor. A number of orga-
nizations have participated in the planning process. and feedback has been sought
from individual community members

The planning efforts began in late 2019. and soon after, COVID-19 limited opportu-
nities to interact with the public. The Sierra County Health Fair was the only public
event prior to public health restrictions. but the Steering Commiltec has engaged
in many non-contact interactions with the public.



Timeline of community engagement efforts

November 2019
January 2020

Stecnng Committee Mectag
Discussion topics Iciuded sotia
media posts. heath far pianaing
and estab Jshing peo,eCt vision
andgoa's

Steenng Commuttee
Meetng Discussion topics
inc.uded workp.an and Civic.
engagement stategies

December 2019

Stecnng Commattes:
Meeting Cricussion topxcs.
nciuded panning pro,ect
Sty 376 touwrs, soGial e
ha outreach. ana assigning
rotes and responsibittbes to
teem membes

February 2020

Steenng Committea Meetng
Biscusson pies inc.uded Fio
Crande Trai. eva.uabsn methods
and preping brcfing for Tor C
Qty Conmission

July 2021

Steering Commetice Mecting
Discussicn topics e cded
Rotary Park A orkshop prepas
13tion. woeb .30 review and
P an outine content

August 2020

Steering Cornmttee
Veetng Discussion topics
inzu:ded estab.ishuney
workeryg (roups 12 addross.
Conservaticn & [ducaton.
Tral 5 & Foothridaes, and
River Access: additiona.
oLtreacn strate-gics

Spring 2021

New Medu ovtreach Organzers
mct with toca. independent medua,
feSLING 1N an AMTiC:e that further
mformed the commLty s to our
eftcels AL et 185 commnrety
membcrs read the artic o,
accordmg o the pubiication

June 2021

Steerng Committee Mocting
Discussicn 12 pics inc uded
Rotary Park workshop prepa
raton, coliabcraton wath Rrv.
€1 Wa k Fconomic Feasikiity
Study contractar and affisated
b naticn outreach

August 2021

Stearing Comemitien Meetmg
Discussion tepics meiuded
Eriefing new oty manager.
ity commission proecl up
date. new pub icabon contont
and design, pLanning for
Rotary Park Wathahop

&
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February 2020

Sictra County Live Leng & Prospcs
Festival A tabic: top display invited
comniunty member s 1 iearn about
the project and provide comments on
how thery wouid use the new iails and
how trar's could he'p ouf communibies

Summer 2020

Cha kbowrds were Insta’.ed n
Fectary Park and Wiisamsbug New
qrestions are Fosted pertodica.ly
by voluntaes and the 1esttng
commLty 1esponses adled tha
spreadsheat, The da wit be Lsed
by planficns to attermgt 1 ceadre
the shared vision of the communty
Flease see Apprndx A for more

August 2021

In patnership vath the: City ot
Truth or Consequences and the
NPS . the landscape architechure
tam Groundraork Studio led a
two day aotkshop on deswed
impravements to Rotary Pk

Summer 2020

Pro,ect factshects were
aistabuted thesghodt the
communty and 3 face

AnMassed 873 folowers

Bock age was launched
1hat a5 of August 2022 hal

&
~

July 2020
Diiefing to the Oty
Commis3on on pro;ect
organization and accom-
piishments to date

September 2021

Steering Comnuttee Meeting
Crscuszons incivded
management maintenance
and stewatdship cf the traiis
and amenities, worting
group upriates.

August 2021

A Laochure was produced descnbmg
the pro;ect and enusioning polentia,
IproveTnts to water and trar, amcn
ties The brochure was distbe.ted at the:
wiekly Farmers Market, the dantown
Brewery. 1omngstar QLIRS and the
communty board in Potary Patk

March 2022

Steenng Committee Meeting
Trscussion lopnes inc.uced
2oordination vath BOR sut«y.
nterns for prciect Soordinaton,
working group updatas. and
management, mantenance
and stesard-hip strategres



Since May of 2022 members of the Steering Committee have been gathering more
community input for the plan in order to help facilitate the communities thoughts on
the priority of implementation of major components of the trail  Presentations have
been made to: Sierra County Commission, City of Truth or Consequences Commis-
sion, Village of Wiltiamsburg. City of Truth or Consequences Chamber of Commerce
Sierra County Arts Council. Truth or Consequences Municipal School Board, City of
Truth or Consequences Recreation and Tourism Board and the Sierra County Rec-
reation and Tourism Board In addition. a community display was set up during the
annual T or C Fiesta. at the County Commission Chambers during early and Primary
Elections Voting. and at the T or C Brewery. The community was asked to provide
written input on selection of priorities. and survey votes were gathered from over
350 citizens

The working groups were tasked with understanding the issues around river access,
trail development. pedestrian bridge crossing. river habitat improvements. and edu-
cation opportunities. The working groups met on multiple occasions and worked to
define the physicat projects. described in Chapter 5 of this document.

In addition to the community cutreach and engagement described above, project
partners also reached out to numerous local clubs and organizations including

« City of Truth or Consequences

+  Village of Williamsburg

« Jornada Resource Conservation & Development Council
+ Sierra Vista Hospital

+  Sierra Soil and Water Conservation District

+ Sierra County Recreation and Tourism Board
+  MainStreet Truth or Consequences

+  Sierra County 4-H Council

« Geronimo Trail National Scenic Byway

« Hot Springs FFA Chapter

+ Hot Springs High School Envirothon Team

+  Hot Springs High School JROTC

+  Hot Springs High School Cross Country Team
« Hot Springs Marketing

+ Hot Springs High School Envirothon Team

+  Hot Springs High School JROTC

+ Hot Springs High School Cross Codnlry Team
+  Holt Springs Marketing

+  Bureau of Reclamation

Because of known cultural sites within the project area. the Village of Williamsburg
corresponded with nine Sierra County affiliated tribes and pueblos inquiring wheth-
er our project elements would adversely affect any sacred sites and cultural land-
scapes. Three responses were received, all of which indicated no immediate con-
cerns. and each group requested to be kept updated on the project. This affiliated
tribal outreach is not intended to preclude official agency consultation, which wilt
be necessary through federal planning processes

Turtls Mountaln Trails Natwork

if the City gave you $100 to spend on these
projects, how would you allocate the
money?

____ Rotary Park Wetlands Improvements

River Access /Boat Launch
Improvements

Accessble River Trall acoss the river

Shared Use Trail from Rotary Park to
Willlamsbuwrg.

Adventure Tralls

Network for hiking,
running, mountain \d
biking, and motorized ‘Qg’s

recreation. F' ;
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04 Vvisitor Safety and Security

The Turtieback Trails Network will provide many opportunities for residents and
visitors to explore the Rio Grande corridor and adjacent public lands. With increased
usage comes an increased need for visitor safety and security. While good informa-
tional signage and well-designed trails can minimize user risk. some trail and river
users may become lost or injured during their recreational outing. As outdoor recre-
ation amenities are developed atong the Rio Grande (river access and trait corridors),
there may be a need for emergency response Lo visitors in distress

Key Issues

+ llegal Dumping: Along A005 (Turtleback Road). some uncontrolled dumping
occurs, and occasionally transient camps are set up along the: river bank.
These aclivities and associated vandalism may deter people from using the
trails network

- Signage: No informational or directional signage exists to help people navigate
the tandscape and river.

+  Watercraft Conflicts: Motorized watercraft can conflict with human-powered
craft {tubes. stand up paddle boards, kayaks)

+ Trall User Conflicts: Motorized and non-motorized trail user confiicts along
the river corridor and adjacent public tands is likely. ATV/UTVs, mountain bikes.
runners/hikers, and horses frequently use this land
Law Enforcement Jurisdiction: The City of T or C Police Dept. is prohibited from
enforcing the State Boating Act. per legislation

- Emergency Response: City of T or C. Viilage of Williamsburg and Sierra County
are individually ill-equipped to respond to trail related injuries or water rescue.
Each entity relies on available people and equipment from neighboring jurisdic-
tions (informat mutuat aid) for appropriate emergency response.
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+  Accaess: There is limited access across the Rio Grande. First responders rely on
A005 and must cross the river at the Hwy 51 bridge to reach stranded or injured
people during river release season. During low flow periods, low water crossings
below Rotary Park and below Williamsburg can be used by limited equipment.

Signage

Signage. whether directional. informational. or regulatory. is non-existent for recre-
ational usersin the T or C area  Signage would help recreational users navigate the
river and the backcountry trails beyond the city limits. Information such as time and
distance to river access sites. markings of river hazards. and tength and difficulty

of hiking/running/biking trails. can provide a safer experience. Knowledge about
conditions can help a user to be prepared and avoid difficult or dangerous
situations

Specific recommendations for signage for each proposed project are provided
in Chapter §

Emergency Operations

The T or C Police and Fire Departments are aware that neither department

can respond to emergencies on the river or adjacent public lands with sufficient
resources. They understand other local EMS resources are available and may

be necessary. Informal mutual aid agreements exist among Sierra County.

T or C. Elephant Butte, Las Palomas, and NM State Police, and more coordination
and planning is necessary to address increased recreational use on the river

and adjacent public lands. A better coordinated response should include
additional swift-water rescue training and acquisition of watercraft capable

of assisting in a rescue

The T or C Police Department is constrained from enforcing the NM Boating Act
(Chapter 66, Article 12 NMSA 1978 ) which stiputates the use of personal ftoatation
devices (PFDs) among other rutes. Better compliance with wearing PFDs could
reduce some stranded/rescue situations. The City of T or C could adopt local
ordinances that mirror the NM Boating Act so local enforcement personnel have
enforcement authority over river safety. The cities of Ruidoso and Carlsbad. NM

B o

have adopted similar ordinances for recreational activities on waters within their
Jjurisdictions

Key Recommendations

1. Develop Emergency Operations Plan for river and trail-based search and rescue
operations and for natural hazards such as flooding or wildfire. The EOP shoutd
also include a Master Mutual Aid Agreement among atl the local governments,
Sierra County, NM State Police, etc. Sierra County would take the lead on devet-
oping the Emergency Operations Plan

2. Provide detailed trail route maps to Sierra County GIS staff. Incorporate trait layer
into 911 Dispatch system so dispatchers can direct emergency response to the
right place in the quickest way.

3. Consider adopting river use ordinances that mirror the NM Boating Act and
address PFD use, excessive noise. unruly behavior. trespassing. and littering.
and ban motorized watercraft between Pasco del Rio and Rotary Park
See Appendix B for an example of a boating ordinance.

4. Design pedestrian bridges to accommodate UTV's or Side-by-Sides for use by
first responders  Instalt removable botlards at either end of bridges to prevent
unauthorized access and use

5. Inform landowners about New Mexico Recreational Use Statute. which gives
liability protection to private landowners who agree to provide public trail access
without charging user fees. See Appendix C for text of the statute.

6. Establish a “Trail Stewards” program to provide ‘eyes and ears’ for law enforce-
ment Trail stewards would report dumping. illegal camping. and other unautho-
rized recreational activities to local law enforcement. Encouraging and inviting
public use of the trail corridors. trail stewards and response by law enforcement
will significantly reduce the undesirable activitics along the Rio Grande.

Wildfire Threats Along the Rio Grande Corridor

Along the Sierra County stretch of the Rio Grande. the native vegetation such as

Rio Grande Cottonwood. Black Willow, New Mexico Privet. Wolfberry, four-wing
saltbush, New Mexico Locust. and native grasses are being replaced by invasive
species such as Russian Olive and Salt Cedar. The non-native plants have drastically
reduced the number of native ptants and have greatly reduced the plant diversity
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and have increased the possibility of wildfires igniting.

The Sierra County Community Wildfire Protection Plan Core Team identified the Rio
Grande comridor. Mims Pond. and the Seco Creek areas as high wildfire risk areas.
The Turtleback Trails Network, particularly the shared-use path between Rotary Park
and Williamsburg and various river access sites could be impacted should wildfires
ignite in the area

Conlinued efforts wilt be necessary to help reduce the chances of wildland fires

within the Turtieback Trails Network. along with education outreach of the risk of
fires Mitigation of wildfire risks and community education is necessary to protect
lives, property. and native habitats
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Part 1: Rio Grande Paddle Trail

A Rio Grande Paddle Trail could be developed from the Pasco del Rio Campground
river access area downstream to the Seco Creek river access area. a distance
of about 20 miles. Many of the amenities and facilities are in place. all needing
improvements for safety and belter visitor experiences. River access sites requiring
improvements include Paseo del Rio Campground. Hwy 51 Bridge. Rotary Park. and
HIS Seco Creek. River access sites requiring development include Ralph Edwards Park
IDR,“‘N',LO & and Village of Williamsburg Community Park area. A new river access site could be
developed along Hwy 51. across from Mescal Canyon to relieve potentially crowded
conditions at the Hwy 51 Bridge site

This section describes the key conditions, existing conditions and recommendations
for improvements for each river access area.

Very rough estimated costs for each river access improvements are $40-60.000
including concrete step or ramp launches, informational signage. loading /untoad-
ing zones, and parking area. Vault toilets at key access sites would be an additionat
cost

Key Issues
« Lack of signage along the river (directional, safety)
+ Noise along river that disturbs residents/businesses

+  Crowded launch sites with lack of parking and facilities (trash. restrooms)
«  Stecp river banks at launch sites
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Existing Conditions

Recreational use of the lower Rio Grande is primarily seasonal. during water
releases from Elephant Butte Dam. The typical floating season begins Memorial Day
Wecekend and lasts through Labor Day, although the water release period is getting
shorter. During the retease, the river flows at 1,400 - 2.300 CFS (cubic feet per
second} Low conditions are releases of below goo CFS and high are at 5.000 CFS
and above.

Following the irrigation season. when river releases are halted and the Bureau of
Reclamation constructs the earthen dam at Rotary Park. the Rio Grande becomes

a very slow-moving river. Opportunities for flat water canoeing and stand up paddle
boards exist if recreationists launch at Rotary Park, paddle upstream and return.

Tubing is the primary means of river floating in and through Truth or Consequences
Most tubers access the river at the Highway 51 bridge and float to Rotary Park. This
float is approximately 4 miles in length and takes about 15 - 2 hours. Hard-shell
boats {kayaks and canoes) either launch at the Paseo det Rio Campground or High-
way 51 Bridge and ftoat to Rotary Park or to a river access site just downstream

of the Village of Williamsburg A few adventurous canoeists and kayakers witl make
the day-long journey from Williamsburg to the Seco Creek access area at the mouth
of Caballo Reservoir.

Very few hazards exist on the Rio Grande from the Paseo del Rio Campground river
access site to Rotary Park, the stretch of the river where the majority of the floating
occurs. Known hazards include the old and existing bridge pylons on Highway 51
There is a partially submerged hazard -100 yards upstream of the NM 51 bridge.

a metal piece that can damage inflatable watercraft. Two rock gardens downstream
of the Pasco det Rio Campground river access (@ 1 mile and 1 65 miles) offer floaters
a little adventure navigating through the rocks. The entire run. from Paseo del Rio
Campground to Seco Creck. during the water release period, could be classified

as swift water, The two rock gardens could be classified as easy Class One rapids

Currently, about 250 people per week float the Rio Grande using the locally avail-
able commercial outfitter/concessionaire. According to local reliable sources, pri-
vate floaters and tubers average 200-300 per week and some weekends can gener-

ate 200 river users on a single day.

Local parks along the river corridor include the Paseo del Rio Campground. Ratph
Edwards Park. Rotary Park. and Williamsburg Community Park.

The Paseo del Rio Campground site is -}z mile downstream of Elephant Bulte Dam
and features river access and camping sites along the Rio Grande. The Elephant
Butte Dam Site Historic District is at this location. It is managed by the Bureau

of Reclamation (BOR) under a lease/ concession agreement

Ralph Edwards Park is not currently accessible by walercraft or tubes. The park
is an important community asset with park and playground equipment. fish pond
festivals and a weekly farmers market in the summer and fall. and a large parking
area. The park is not directly accessible from the river.

Rotary Park features picnic shelters, hot springs discharge. wetlands. fishing
access, and serves as a trailhead for the Healing Waters Trail which provides access
to Veterans Hill and the Historic Bathhouse District. The park is directly accessible
from the river

Witliamsburg Community Park features tennis and baskelball courts. horseshoe
pitching pits, and picnic shelters. The park is not directly accessible from the river.
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River Access Site Recommendations and Visitor
Use/Concerns

Paseo del Rio Campground River Access (*33°09.123", -107°12.231")

The Paseo del Rio Campground river access is predominantly used by Sicrra
County residents. Locals enjoy the gentle river bank slope to the river, allowing easy
access for floating and fishing. This area offers 17 developed campsites with a fire
ring. picnic table. and adobe shelter. It is a popular spot for fishing and swimming
Critical issues and concerns at this river access area include lack of informational
and directional signage, poor flow management of vehicles. very poor road
conditions. and congestion and crowding. especially during holiday weckends

The Paseo del Rlo Campground to NM 51 access
Specific Conditions Noted:

« There is no signage directing floaters from NM 51 to parking areas or from
parking areas to river access spots.

- There is no signage for river users - ethics. duration. map. requirements,
safety (pilings and bridges), hazards.

- The paved road -Y% mile long from NM 51 accesses the upper parking area near
the old fish hatchery and can accommodate -10 vehicles; there are two vault toi-
lets at this site The upper parking area is not organized - no parking spots. There
are wooden steps and metat handrails leading down from the vault toilets to the
river.

+  Lower parking area just off NM &1 can accommodate -15 vehicles and also has
two vault toilets; many people hike a river trail between these two parking areas
It fills up fast when floaters leave vehicles at the lower lot.

+ The road belween upper and lower parking lots can wash out. The pavement
is failing. and regular passenger cars may have trouble passing through.

+  Dirt road -% mile along the river that is crowded when peopte park vehicles
and fish, especially on weekends and holidays.

+  Vehicles often park in the riparian corridor. laking advantage of the shade
canopy. Vehicles damage vegetation along the river's edge.

« The river access site is designed to minimize user conflicts: however,
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the unimproved road can become crowded on weekends and holidays and
impede traffic

Key Recommaendatlons

1. Install River Access information Sign with maps showing hazards, river access
locations, float distances and times. emergency numbers. rules and regulations
and a community board

2. Develop a long-term parking area and a separate 30-minute unloading zone.
Loading Zone signage should educate floaters to prepare equipment prior
to arriving at the loading zone.

3 Define pathway to riverbank

4 Protect and restore riparian areas. barricade vehicle access and parking

5. Coordinate with Bureau of Reclamation concessionaire/permittee
onimprovements

6 Maintain a natural surface river access area
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New Mexico Highway 51 Bridge River Access (+33°08.682', -107°12.550")

The NM 51 Bridge river access is very popular. especially with the local
commercial floating business and residents. The area can become congested
with vehicles and floaters. and parking can be an issue during weekends

and holidays. The actual launch area is on a steep riverbank without steps or
handrails. The riverbank just downstream is a popular place for peopie to fish.
Critical issues and concerns at this launch area include a lack of informational
and directional signage. insufficient parking, lack of garbage receptacles

or toilets. and a river access site that increases risk of slips/trips/falls.

The Paseo del Rio Campground to NM 51 access
Specific Conditions Noted:

- There is no signage for river users - map. duration, requirements
ethics, hazards.

- Access the main parking area on Turtieback Avenue (dirt road) just off NM s1:
the parking area can accommodate -5-10 vehicles.

- Cars are frequently parked in the few shaded spots right beside the river
access site, which causes congestion for other river users

« Secondary parking area accesses trails to the south and can accommodate
~15 vehicles

«  No toilets or garbage receptacles.

- Main parking area gets very busy during weekends and holidays

- Streambank launch is about 20" long. steep. gravely, with no ramp/steps
or handrails (people do falt climbing down the slope)

+  Site can support existing recreational activities on weekdays. but is very
congested on weekends and holidays. limiting recreational experience

+  Users experience waiting periods between float groups on busy days
{launch etiquette would help - inflate tubes before getting to river put-in)

« Siteis next to a road and hillside: there are congestion conflicts with vehicles
and floaters on busy days

B

Key Recommendations

Install River Access Information Sign with maps showing hazards, river access
locations. float distances and times, emergency numbers. rules and regulations
and a community board

Establish a long-term parking area away from the river access area.

Establish a 30-minute unloading zone adjacent to the ramp

Construct a concrete ramp or steps to the river's edge. Install railings for

user safety and as a conveyance to slide hardshell boats down to the river

. Construct toilet/changing facilities and drinking water fountains

Information signage coutd inform visitors of overflow parking downriver
on NM &1
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Mescal Canyon River Access PROPOSED (+33°08.947", -107°12.989")

A new river access at Mescal Canyon could alleviate crowding and congested
conditions at the Hwy 51 Bridge river access area. It is 2 mile down river from the
NM 51 Bridge and is located on a NM Department of Transportation right-of-way.
This site could accommodate a taunch, loading and unloading zone, water trail
information signage, and some long-term parking Sight distances along E. Third
Ave (NM 51) appear favorable for vehicles’enlering or leaving the area. If launching
from this site. floaters will slill be able to expetience the small rapid rock gardens

Key Recommendations

1 Install River Access lnlqrmaticn Sign with maps showing hazards. river access
locations. float distances and times. emergency numbers. rules and regulations
and a community board

Establish a ong-term parking area away from the launch arca.

Establish a 30-minute unloading zone adjacent to the ramp

bW N

Construct a concrete ramp or steps o rivers edge. Install railings for user
safety and as a conveyance to slide hardshell boats down to the river,

5 Coordinate planning and site development with NM Department

of Transportation.
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Ralph Edwards River Access PROPOSED (33°07.379". -107°15.296")

Ariver access site at Ralph Edwards park would be a welcome amenity for the park
This taunch area could primarily serve people interested in a short tubing fioat from
Ralph Edwards to Rotary Park. If a 0.6 mile multi-use trail is developed connecting
Rotary to Ralph Edwards. (see Part 2 of this chapter) then floaters could easily and
safely walk back apriver and float the river section again.

Key Recommendations

1. Install River Access Information Sign with maps showing hazards. river access

locations. float distances and times. emergency numbers. rules and regulations

and a community board

Establish a long-term parking area away from the launch area

Establish a 30-minute unloading zone adjacent to the ramp

Construct a concrete ramp or steps to rivers edge. Install railings for user safety

and as a conveyance to slide hardshell boats down to the river

5 Construct a rock jetty upstream of the ramp to create an eddy. The jetty would
slow the water velocity near the bank, allowing for severat floaters to enter or exit

A woN

the river at one time.
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Rotary Park River Access (+33°07.379', -107°15.296")

The Rotary Park take-out/launch area is used by the local commercial floating
business as well as many private floaters It has space for many vehicles, including
vehicles with trailers. There are porta-potties. garbage receptacles. and covered
picnic tables  There is no potable water. The primary take-out has steep. gravely
and muddy stopes that make launching and take-out difficult and potentiaity
dangerous. The secondary take-out is upstream approximately 100 feet. and

has crude slairs and a handrail. The parking area has potential to offer food truck
and beverage services. Critical issues and concerns at this area include lack

of informational and directional signage, and two taunch/take-out areas that need
improvements to reduce potential for slips/trips/falis.

Specific Conditions Noted:

- Thereis no signage for river users - map, duration, requirements, ethics. hazards

- Two parking arcas accessed via city streets that can accommodate -40 vehicles

+  Primary take-oul for floaters, including the local commercial float company.

+  Primary take-out is -20" tong. steep. gravely. with no ramp or handrails

+  Floating from Hatchery or NM 51 Bridge takes 15-2 hours, depending on CFS.
and requires floaters to safely navigate two small sets of rapids (Class |).

+  Float takes recreationists through T or C and near many homes and a couple
of businesses: noise from floaters can be an issue to residents

- Port-a-pottics and a garbage dumpster at site atong with a few covered picnic
tables and barbecue grills.

+ Secondary take-out near the picnic area has handrails and poorly maintained
steps that are camouflaged by brush.

«  Site is busy during weekends and holidays.

«  Earthen dam is constructed annually and provides “unauthorized” access across
the river for hikers and runners

« Jurisdictional responsibility for this site and land ownership is in question.

+ This area is a trailhead for the Healing Waters Trail

+  Site can support existing recreational activities, but take-out is small and con-
gested. especially on weekends and holidays. limiting recreational experience.

«  Steep. unimproved streambank decreases safe take-outs and launches, espe-
cially when CFS flows are lowered by BOR

«  First-time floaters risk missing the take-outs due to the small size of the first one

T |
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and brush at the main take-out.
+  Wellands conservation/restoration could significantly change park/parking
function tayout.

Key Recommendations

1. Install River Access Information Sign with maps showing hazards. river access
locations. float distances and times. emergency numbers, rutes and regutations
and a communily board

2. Establish a tong-term parking area away from the launch area

Establish 30-minute un-loading zone adjacent to ramp

4 Construct a concrele ramp or steps to rivers edge. Instali railings for user safety

and as a conveyance to slide hardshell boats down to the river.

5 Construct a rock jetty upstream of the ramp to create an eddy. The jetty would
slow the water velocity near the bank. allowing for severat floaters to exit the
river at one time.

6 Explore the possibility of installing an accessibie boat taunch for persons
with disabilities These specially designed floating docks allow persons with
disabilities to climb in/on and launch their own boat. This launch design coutd
provide river access opportunities year-round when flow is backed-up allowing
out-and-back trips for stand up paddle boards. canoes and kayaks

7. Construct toitet/changing facilities and drinking water fountains
40
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Williamsburg River Access {+33°06.347", -107°17.831")

River use is much lower from Rotary Park to Williamsburg and Seco Creek than on
the section from the Fish Hatchery to Rotary Park. Hard-shell boats are preferred

due to time and distance on the water. Prevailing southwest winds can add hours
to the float times

The Williamsburg take-out / river access area is 3/4 mile south of the S. Broadway
and State Route 187 intersection. The area is currently being managed by the BOR,
however. the Bureau is in discussions with Village of Williamsburg officials to trans-
fer management responsibility to the Vitllage. Village officials have expressed inter-
est in developing an RV campground and other recrealional amenities in the area

Kayakers and canoeists would most likely use this site as a take-out for trips
originating at the NM 51 launch site. Hardshell boalers floating to Seco Creek would
likely launch from Rotary Park. The Williamsburg river access site is not envisioned
as a primary launch tocation at this time.

Currently, the river access area is uninviting to recreational river users. Complaints
of garbage and itlegal dumping are mentioned and the riverbank is steep. often
muddy. and covered in cow manure.

Specific Conditions Noted:

+  No signage directing floaters.

« Parking area can accommodate -10-15 vehicles

+ Take-outs/launches are either stecp and gravely or VERY muddy with high
tevels of bovine excrement

+ Floating from Hatchery or NM 51 Bridge takes 3-4 hours. depending on CFS,
and requires floaters to safely navigate two small sets of rapids (Class 1}

+ Parking area is used by RV campers and BOR may develop a campsite
in the future to be managed by the Village of Williamsburg

« No toilets or garbage receptacles.
BOR has jurisdictional responsibility for this site.

+  Garbage is prevalent and the location is often used as an illegal dump site.

30 minute L oading/\inoading Zone

Rosdway Directonal Sagnage

River Take Out Ahead 9gn

 You Are Here Sign

4

Key Recommendations
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Install River Access Information Sign with maps showing hazards, river access
locations, float distances and times. emergency numbers, rules and regulations
and a community board

Establish a long-term parking area away from the launch arca

. Establish a 30-minute un-loading zone adjacent to the ramp.

The Village of Williamsburg should secure management responsibilities for this
river access area
Construct a hardened ramp to mitigate muddy conditions
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Caballo Reservolr - Seco Creek River Access (+32°59.045", -107°17.327')

Ariver access at Seco Creek just upriver of Caballo Reservoir would provide a
quality day-long river experience for canoe or kayak enthusiasts. It would be a yery
tong floal for tubers due to prevailing winds from the south pushing against recre-
ationists. The selting is more remote with no amenities. It is about 14 miles south of
Rotary Park to the lakeout, predominantly on NM 187. The site is popular for RVing.
camping. and fishing

30mnstetoting Zone AN
Specific Conditions Noted:

»  No signage directing floaters ooy

- Parking area can accommodate -20 vehicles and is used by RV campers Raver Tae Out Abead Sign *

»  Take-out is on gentler stream bank slopes and easily accessible

» Site is accessed by driving NM 187 then through a small community. You hre Here Sign *

» Paddle float from Rotary Park launch takes 6-8 hours and typicatly done
in 3 kayak or canoe: it lakes significantly more time in tubes

- Gravel access road is - % mile long. poorly maintained. rutted, and has
numerous pot holes
The BOR has jurisdictionat responsibility for this site.
Take-out can support existing recreational activities, but poor condition
of gravel road limits the type of vehicles accessing it

+  Theriver access site is difficult to find if water levels are high.

Key Recommendations

1 Establish a shuttle parking arca away from the river access area
2. Establish a boat loading zone, so vehicles and RV's don't block access
to the riverbank.
3. Post signs up-river informing boaters that the river access site is up ahead
4 Maintain a natural surface take-out area
5 Install a tall flagpole at the take-out so boaters can navigate to the site
during high water levels.
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Ramp Designs

Considerations for using a ramp or steps to the river's edge depends on slope
length and steepness. Excessively steep and long slopes could benefit from
steps leading down to a flatter launch area. Concrete ramps with safety railings
may be appropriate for most of the river access areas between Fish Hatchery
and Williamsburg. Please see Appendix D for details of different ramp designs
and their advantages and disadvantages

Signage and Wayfinding

Signage should help the public find the river access sites. understand any risks
involved in river floating, and spell out rules and regulations to provide enhanced
visitor experiences and reduce/manage risk for paddle trail users

Turtleback Trails Branding and Logo

The Turtieback Trails logo helps communicate the diversity of the trails system -
land and water trails. and the varicty of recreational experiences available to every-
one. The logo idea emerged from our local mountain namesake.

Using this logo on all signage related to the Turtieback Trails Network helps estab-
lish a strong long-term ownable identity. The logo works as a system and it provides
an easily recognizable brand that serves as an identifier marker throughout the trails
system. The logo will create visuat continuity and clarity and improve the trail user
and river floater experiences through clear wayfinding

{: This logo should be utilized on roadway directional signs. at river access sites

signage, at traithead signage and on trail marker signage. it should also appear
in print publications and electronic media.
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River Access Site Kiosk

The most important information about the Rio Grande Padd!le Trail should be dis-
played on a kiosk at cach river access site. The kiosk should contain a river map
pointing out float times and distances. hazards. publicly accessible sites (since
much of the river corridor is private). rules and regulations governing floating activi-
ties. and a message board for public use. The river access working group prepared
these kiosk concepts for further consideration

Floating the Rio Grande
in Sierra County, New Mexico,
Walconio! To anhance your flosting exporiones,

ploass review the following informetion:
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Graphics credit to Dustin Runyan)

Directional Signage

Visitors to T or C and Williamsburg
should be able to get to the Rio
Grande access points easily. Direc-
tional signage throughout main road-
way arterials and residential areas are
necessary. Signage could be simple.
following the Manual on Uniform
Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) -
with brown background color for
guide and information signs related
to points of recreational or cultural
interest

Location Signage

Each river access site will become an
important amenity in the community.
A stand alone ‘gateway’ sign would
hetp define the spaces as important
community areas

River Miteage Signage

First responders indicated that the
placement of river mileage signs
would help river recreationists to be
aware of their locations in case of
emergency. The signs should be visi-
ble from the river

River Access
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“Take Out Ahead"” Signage

River floaters indicated that the take-outs can
“sneak up” on them because there are no indi-
cators the take-out is ahead if the Rio Grande Rotary Park
water levels are up. preparing to exit the river River Access
becomes even more difficult. Fioaters need 100 Yards Ahead on
to be alerted that a public river access site is
ahead. A “River Take Out Ahead’ sign should
be instalted 100 yards before each take-out

Wayfinding Concepts

Key wayfinding principles include:

« Connect Places Facilitate travel between destinations and provide
guidance to new destinations
Keep Information Simple Present information simply. using clear
fonts and simple designs so that it can be understood quickly
Maintain Mction Be legible and visible for people moving so that
they can read the signage without stopping
Be Predictable Standardize the placement and design of signs so
that patterns are estabbished. and the signage becomes predict-
able
Promote Active Travet Encourage increased rates of actve
transportaticn by helping people to realize they can use the bike-
way and pedestrian network to access the places they want to go
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River Management

Several unique river experiences are possible on Lhe Rio Grande from the Fish
Hatchery to Seco Creek. Marketing these differcnt experiences will help visitors and
residents understand which segment they should float. Established use patterns
should be maintained so all river users can enjoy their experiencen.

The Fish Hatchery segment caters to families playing in the river shallows and very
short tubing runs. The adjacent campground helps establish a family-friendly atmo-
sphere at this tocation.

The Hwy 51 to Rotary Park segment has become the high use zone, favored by
almost everyone who floats. It features the only ‘riffles’ on the river. and can be
floated in 15-2 hours, it's an easy shuttic and doable after work. River managers witl
likely have to address some emerging trends on this section including excessive
noise from portable speakers. river crowding. and occasional motorized watercraft.
Potential strategies to address these problems could be: enforcing the municipat
noise ordinance at specific times of day. like 4-8pm when residents may want to
enjoy the river views from their properties: eslablishing launch times during busy
weekends or holidays. and prohibiting motorized watercraft during the short tubing
season in this segment.

The City of T or C and the Bureau of Reclamation shoutd also develop a plan of
action in the event several liveries or tube rental operations begin competing for
launch times and staging areas for launch and take-ouls. Depending on the suc-
cess of the paddie trail and predictable walter levels. a permit system may be nec-
essary in the future.

The Rotary Park to Seco Creck segment experiences low to moderate use.
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Part 2: Trails and Pedestrian Footbridges

The trails and pedestrian footbridges component include three trail segments and
at least two pedestrian foolbridges crossing the Rio Grande to access the trail seg-
ments. Trail segments are: a riverside multi-use path from Rotary Park to the Village
of Williamsburg community park: a riverside multi-use path from Rotary Park to
Ralph Edwards Park: and a 26+ mile trail network on Bureau of Land Management
lands using existing routes and roads. All of the trail segments are across the Rio
Grande from T or C and Williamsbusg

Very rough estimated costs are $500.000 for each bridge including engineering.
prefabricated bridge purchase and installation. Trail construction and materials for
two trail segments could range from $150-200.000 dollars with a stabilized crush-
er-fines surface Trail improvement costs for BLM land trails woutd primarity be
focused towards informational and directional signage at trail junctions and intersec-
tions

Key Issues Heard Around Town

+  Maintenance/vandalism/trash

+  Private land - need signage to inform trail users

« Archaeological site adjacent to the planned trail needs to be protected

« Handicap accessibility - possibly construct an accessibte pier at either Ralph
Edwards or Rotary, accessibie river launch sites, and consider accessibility in trail
construction
Private land easement to access County Road A005
Maintenance of County Road A005 - currently has some portions maintained by
the City of T or C and other portions maintained by Sierra County

+ Trail user conflicts - manage potentiat conflicts between runners/bikers/hikers/
dogs and wildlife

+ Trail development - need to coordinate with BLM and BOR in their prescribed
planning processes for developing trails
Bureau of Reclamation easements - need to coordinate with BOR on any trait
work/footbridge construction that would impact the flow capacity of the river
channel

Components of the Trail Network
Rio Grande Trail Extension from the Fish Hatchery to Willlamsburg

This project envisions an opportunity to extend the Rio Grande Trail in Sierra County
by an additional ten miles. From the Fish Hatchery site off of NM Highway 51. a hiker
could cross the road to access Turtleback Avenue (A005), a dirt road utilized by the
Bureau of Reclamation and locals. to travel approximately four miles through federal
and private land to a point just across the river from Rotary Park

From Rotary Park. a BOR access road follows the riverbank for approximately a mile
before turning left away from the river to higher ground. Here. due to the topology
of the riverbank area. there are three options for establishment of a hiking trail. The
river channelis below 4240 elevation, and for much of the study area. a wide swath
of tow terrain is also below this elevation.

Option 1: Lower Bench

This stretch of land. which some residents call 'the flats.” stays below 4240 There is
an existing dirt/sand road that follows the riverbank closely (within 100 for most of
the study area

The width of the lower bench varies within the study area from less than 50’ (es-
pecially at roughly 33112694, -107276500. "the chokepoint’) to almost a mile in the
deep bend just past Williamsburg  Trail construction through the chokepoint could
be technically chaltenging and prone to weather damage due to the erosion-vulner-
able steep hillside. The area can become muddy during rains

A trail that closely followed the riverbank would offer some shade. ample wildlife
viewing. and fishing opportunilies.

Option 2: Upper Bench

What some residents call ‘the mesa’. the upper bench rises rather abruptly from the
lower bench in most of the study arca
There are esltablished dirt/sand roads that a trait could parallel A trail that rough-

ly followed the edge of the Upper Bench would feature commanding views of the
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fiver.

However, federal officials have cautioned against new traits on the mesa due to the
existence of nearby fragile cultural sites

Option 3: Combination of Lower and Upper

A compromise atignment could begin and end on the Lower Bench. running paraltel
to the established dirt roads near the riverbank. only ascending to the Upper Bench
for a few hundred yards above the chokepoint

Recommended Route

The trails working group developed a trail alternative evaluation criteria based on
User Experience, Aesthetics. Ease of Implementation, User Accomodation, and Cul-
tural/Historical. Based on these criteria. the lower bench is the preferred alternative
Please see Appendix E for the fult Trail Scoring chart and criteria

It will require some creative engineering to develop a trail or boardwalk through the
salt cedar thicket. However, overcoming some construction hurdles wilt result in a
consistent riverbank course that has more shade and is more accessible to a broad-
er range of non-motorized traffic. while avoiding risk of disturbing fragile culturat
sites
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Wl Proposed riverside trait to Willomsburg

Key Recommendations

Coordinate with Sierra County and City of T ar C to designate Turtleback Road
(AQOs5) as a Rio Grande Trail alignment. Work with appropriate local entities to
recognize foot traffic on the road and allow for Rio Grande Trail signage.
Develop a 1.2 mile multi-use pathway between Williamsburg and the intersection
with Turticback Road as it turns South Construct the non-motorized pathway to
6-8 foot wide standards. accessible by foot. bicycle. or wheeled mobility device
Install barricades to prevent unauthorized motorized use.

+ Installinformational. educational and river stewardship signage along the route.
{See Conservation section for signage recommendations)

install trail amenities such as shade structures and benches

+ Determine organization or agency responsible for trail management

and operations

5
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Riverside Trail from Rotary Park to Ralph Edwards Park

Truth or Consequences has two public parks on the banks of the Rio Grande that are
less than a mile apart. While the city side of the river is already populated by private
residences, the east/south side is platted for future development and currently in a
natural state. A recreation easement will provide up to a 100-foot wide buffer zone
for the creation of an ADA-accessibie footpath along the shady banks of the Rio
Grande  This pathway would provide a much needed amenity in the City, providing
access to nature and offering health benefits to alt residents and visitors.

Key Recommendations

«  The City of T or C should work with Rio Vista Land Holdings (or subsequent own-
ers) to secure a recreational trail easement so it can legally fund. build, and help
maintain a riverside trail.

+ Develop a 6-8 foot wide universatly accessible pathway connected by two pe-
destrian bridges (one at Rotary Park and one at Ralph Edwards Park). The 0.6
mile long trail surface should be firm and stable. and should be able to with-
stand overbank flooding

« Assure that private property owners on the east/south side of Rio Grande have
secured legal access to the trail ot strategically located access points. (individu-
al property owners should not have personal access to the trail from their prop-
erty as this causes trail management problems).

+ Develop a trail management agreement with Rio Vista Land Holdings (or subse-
quent owners)

+ Encourage riverbank conservation to protect riverbanks

BLM Trails Network

Old mining and 4WD trails currently form a network of rugged mountain trails
throughout the public lands between the Rio Grande and Turtleback Mountain.
These trails are currently used by hikers. runners, mountain bikers, and OHV enthu-
siasts. Establishing some of the network as official BLM trails. suitable for certain
types of use. would reduce user conflicts. protect delicate ecosystems, and create
an enhanced recreational amenity for Sierra County
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Existing conditions:

+ Some of the trails are graded dirt roadways. maintained by Sierra County. BLM.
and/or BOR and suitable for most vehicle traffic.

« Some are rocky and/or sandy. requiring a 4WD vehicle

+  Doubletrack: Many are rugged. rocky. sandy. and/or steep. accessible for ex-
perienced ORV drivers in small. high-clearance 4WD vehicles. but perhaps not
sustainable.

+  Singletrack: Some are too narrow or steep for motorized vehictes.

A GPS running app catled Strava provides evidence of the use of these trails by
non-motorized recreationalists via their ‘global heatmap’, which maps runners’ use
of the trails:

The Caltopo map (hitps DF ) showing recent uses.

Designating and integrating any new trails into the BLM Tri-County plan will require
review (see Chapter 8}, though some of this has already been done. In October 2021
and October 2022. local organizers received a BLM permit to conduct a trail running
race. lhe Truth or Consequences Desert Ultra (www runtorc.com). which involved a
review of any sensitive ecological or archeological sites.

The primary access route to get to the trails on the south/southwest stopes of Ca-
ballo Cone is Turtleback Avenue (County Road A005). The road ascends from the
Rio Grande up to a junclion some locals refer to as “Grand Central’ (see map below)
The timproved gravel roadway turns southwest here. descending back to the low riv-
er valley and becoming sandy in places. A brief accounting of the various roads and
trails fottows the map:

Roads and trails on BLM/BOR land:

+ Tarantula Loop: The loop created by ascending Turtleback Avenue past Grand
Cenlral. up a very steep jeep brail to Tarantula Junction, and then dropping into
the arroyo that paraltels the main trail to return to the Rotary Park area. A confi-
dent driver in a 4WD vehicle could drive to Tarantula Junction. but much of the
arroyo is too sandy and rugged for highway vehicies. This loop. at about 4 miles
total, is frequently used by trail runners.

+  Scenic Loop: The loop created by following the river west from Rotary Park.
turning left in and ascending an arroyo shortly past the cattle gate. and follow-
ing a jeep trail up to Turtleback Avenue at Grand Central. A variation on the loop
ascends a very rocky jeep trail to a junction with Turtleback Avenue just down-
hill from the primary loop A confident driver in a 4WD vehicle could drive this
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There are some very sandy and steep rocky areas

- Goat Loop: This refers to sandy/muddy ranch roads that track the Rio Grande
downstream from the vicinity of Rotary Park before turning back towards Turtle-
back Avenue.

+ Blackjack Loop: A roughty 4-mile loop of steep and rugged jeep trail beginning
and ending at Tarantuta Junction. It passes the historic Blackjack mine. A varia-
tion turns south at the mine site to descend a rugged jeep trail.

- Gold Rush Loop: After ascending the sandy arroyo southeast of Tarantula Junc-
tion for tess than a mile, a spur to the east leads up a steep and narrow trail to
the historic Gold Rush mine, and then levels out and follows an old railroad pre-
sumably used for mining carts  This part of the trail is not suitable for any vehicle
traffic

+ Hidden Valley Loop: A roughly 8-mile loop beginning and ending at Tarantula
Junction. After ascending the sandy arroyo southeast of Tarantuta Junction for
approximately two miles, this rugged jeep track reaches Hidden Valiey Over-
took. with long views to the Caballo Mountains and Caballo Reservoir. The trail
becomes more rugged as it descends into the arroyo on the other side. only
suitable for hikers and experienced OHV drivers. in less than a mile, the loop as-
cends west/northwest to a ridge before dropping back to Miner's Lane. though
continuing down the arroyo is also possible for hikers interested in experiencing
a slot canyon with several four-foot drops and connecting to the jeep trail lead-
ing to Palomas Gap

Key Recommendations

« The City of Truth or Consequences should work with the Las Cruces District Of-
fice of the BLM to include the recreation opportunities and proposed pathways
described in this document in the BLM's TriCounty Resource Management Plan
and subsequent travel management planning

«  The City and County should formally adopt the recommendations described in
Chapter & Visitor Safety.

« The City should ensure that the outdoor recreation opportunities and pathways
described in this document are included in any relevant regional marketing proj-
ects

evaluating trail segments for sustainability and user experience and presenting
concepts to the Bureau of Land Management.

% + In coordination with BLM. determine if temporary trail directionat signage coutd

be installed to improve the visitor experience.
Footbridges

Jo access lhe other side of the Rio Grande from Truth or Consequences, the current
options are:

1 Drive approximately 4 miles northeast on NM 51 to the vehicie bridge. and then
turn right on Turtleback Avenue and follow the road along the other side of the
river (driving from Rotary Park to the poinl directly across the river is approxi-
mately 8 miles).

2. Pedeshtiians may cross the BOR rock dam at Rotary Park while it's in place in the
winter. The dam is neither designed nor intended for pedestrian use, and pas-
sage can be treacherous, involving stepping on unstable rocks wilh water rush-
ing past

3. While the rock dam is in place, enterprising pedestrians may wade across and
higher-clearance vehicles can drive across the low water crossing approximately
200 yards downstream from Rotary Park.

Footbridge Locations

The Steering Committee envisions up to four pedestrian crossings between Ele-
phant Butte Dam and Williamsburg. The most important crossings are at Rotary Park
and the Village of Williamsburg.

1 Rotary Park: A bridge at Rotary Park is the core of the system and the highest pri-
ority. The site offers ample parking. regular visitation by locals and tourists. and is
within easy walking distance of the downtown business district and many resi-
dences. hotels, and vacation rentals. A bridge here would also allow Rio Grande
Trail users to cross the river in order to access amenitiesin T or C

2. Ralph Edwards Park: Several plans identify a vehicular bridge crossing near this

@ - Local trail users (non-motorized and motorized) should collaborate on creating
trail experiences without adversely affecting trail user goals. This would involve

park. A pedestrian walkway should be incorporated into the bridge design.

@3 Williamsburg: The preferred Witliamsburg bridge and river access location is
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near the VFW post. which could provide necessary parking There is a private
tot south of the VFW property which the Village wouid need to negotiate for a
recreational easement or purchase the tot.

4. Paseo del Rio Campground (fish hatchery): The campground is managed by the
Bureau of Reclamation and concessionaire or permittee operations are being
explored. Potential concessionaires have considered a pedestrian bridge here
to aliow campers and day users to hike to the dirt dam and for Rio Grande Trail
hikers to cross the river into the Paseo Del Rio Campground and continue hik-
ing along Turtleback Road Another possibility is utilizing the old Hwy 51 bridge
structure as a pedestrian crossing and constructing a river-side trail on the op-
posite side of the campground

Design Recommendations

The bridge at Rotary Park offers an opportunity to meet several goals with one com-
prehensive design. including

Fishing Access' New Mexico Department of Game and Fish stocks the river with
trout. drawing regional anglers
Emergency Services: A removabie bollard could provide access to emergency
vehicles

+  Floating Access: The current riverbank is brushy. steep. and muddy. See the Ro-
tary Park river access section earlier in this chapter for details

+  Dam Operation: At the end of the irrigation season, BOR technicians construct a
rock/dirt dam at Rotary Park to maintain hydrostatic pressure in the Hot Springs
District, and then remove it in the spring A mechanical/hydraulic dam structure
woutd provide BOR operators a permanent option for controlling the river's flow
at a much lower cost going forward. The pedestrian bridge crossing and per-
manent dam construction coutd be consolidated into one project sharing some
engineering and design features

The Steering Committee recommends the bridges
+  Visually resemble one another, even if they are built in sequence over a period

of years
+  Areinformed by the US Fish & Witdlife Service migratory bird research in order

to minimize harm to any endangered species (see Part 3 of this chapter)

Are ADA-accessible.

Prevent livestock from crossing

Provide ample clearance for tubes and kayaks and other river-legal & appropri-
ate vessels, including law enforcement/emergency services watercraft

Allow for unimpeded BOR river channel maintenance operations

Structures support nesting opportunities for swatlow species using the river cor-
ridor
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